Waeon ovu/zf%
7 3

MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
AUGUST 14, 2018
AGENDA

1. Call to order and welcome by Chairman Tate
2. Announcements

3. Moment of Silence

4. Pledge of Allegiance

5. Public Hearing(s) — None

6. Public Comirie_nt Period

7. Additions to agenda

8. Adjustments to and approval of the ageﬁda

9. Reports/Presentations
New state Division of Aging and Adult Services award named in
honor of Dorothy R. Crawford — Department of Social Services
D1rector Patrick Betancourt and Mrs Crawford : :

: 10. old Business :
- A. Public Wi-Fi for libraries — Comm1ss1oner Gillespie
_ B Update on space needs analysis — County Manager

11. New Business : : .
A. Renewal of lease with Inovotex LLC - ECOIlOH‘llC Development
Director Tommy Jenkins/County Attorney ' :
B. Macon County Transit — Director Kim Angel
(1) Updated System Safety Plan (SSP)
(2) Continuity of Operations Plan {COOP)
(3) Updated Title V Plan
C. Resolution to abandon a portion of State Route (SR) 1617 —
North Carolina Department of Transportation
D. Agreement to Provide Recreation Opportunities with Scaly
Mountain Historical Society — Finance Director

MACON COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANNEX 5 WEST MAIN STREET FRANKLIN, NORTH CARCLINA 28734
PHONE 828-349-2000 FAX: 828-349-2400



E.

F.

Fireworks permit application - Grand Finale Entertainment,
Inc.

Ratification of board poll — County Manager

12.Consent Agenda — Attachment #12
All items below are considered routine and will be enacted by one motion. No
separate discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Board of
Commissioners.

A.

OO W

Minutes of the June 5, 2018 continued session, the June 12,
2018 regular meeting and the June 19, 2018 continued session
Budget Amendments #20-31

Tax Releases for July in the amount of $24,377.78

. 2017 Tax Settlement Report

Monthly ad valorem tax report (no action necessary)

13.Appointments

A.
B.

Library Board (one seat)
Tony Potts as chair of the Highlands Tourism Development
Committee

14.Closed session (if necessary)

15.Adjourn/Recess




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: August 14,2018
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Department of Social Services

SUBJECT MATTER: State award named in honor of Dorothy
Crawford

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Department of Social Services Director Patrick Betancourt will be at the
meeting to share the news of an announcement by the North Carolina
Department of Health and Human Services — Division of Aging and Adult
Services — regarding a newly created statewide award named in honor of
Dorothy R. Crawford. The Dorothy R. Crawford Award will recognize an
individual or organization that has developed innovative strategies related to

or had a significant impact on the lives of older adults through Adult
Protective Services or guardianship. Mr. Betancourt can provide additional
details at the meeting, and will be accompanied by Mrs. Crawford.

Attachments

Agenda Item 9




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: August 14,2018
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board
SUBJECT MATTER: Public Wi-Fi for libraries

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Commissioner Gillespie will have a recommendation regarding a request to
enhance Wi-Fi service at the libraries in Highlands and Nantahala.

Attachments

Agenda Item 10A




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: August 14, 2018
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Administration
SUBJECT MATTER: Space Needs Analysis

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

The County Manager will give the board an update on the proposed Space
Needs Analysis

Attachments

Agenda Item 10B




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: August 14, 2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Economic Development

SUBJECT MATTER: Renewal of lease with Inovotex, LL.C

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Economic Development Director Tommy Jenkins is seeking a one-year
renewal of the lease with Inovotex, LLC for space at the Macon County
Business Development Center. The lease would be effective as of June 15,
2018 at a monthly rent of $1,840 per month. The County Attorney has
prepared the appropriate resolution and lease for the board’s consideration,
copies of which are attached. He advises that a “colored” Exhibit A to the
lease will be provided at the meeting.

Attachments

Agenda Item 11A




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

RESOLUTION OF THE MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
DECLARING PROPERTY TO BE SURPLUS AND APPROVING A ONE YEAR LEASE
OF THE SAME BY MACON COUNTY TO INOVOTEX, LLC., A DELAWARE
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY.

THAT WHEREAS, Macon County owns certain real property being described in the Lease
to Inovotex, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, a copy of which is attached hereto; and

WHEREAS, Macon County does not presently have a use for the same; and

WHEREAS, Macon County desires to declare the same to be surplus and authorize the entry
of the Lease to Inovotex, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, a copy of which is attached
hereto, for the period of one year from June 15, 2018; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-272, Macon County is authorized to enter
into the Lease to Inovotex, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, a copy of which is attached
hereto, upon the passing of a Resolution authorizing the same.

NOW THEREFORE, upon Motion of Commissioner \
seconded by Commissioner , and duly approved, be it
hereby resolved by the Macon County Board of County Commissioners as follows:

RESOLVED, that Macon County will not have a need for the real property described in the
Lease to Inovotex, LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, a copy of which is attached hereto
and incorporated herein by reference for and during the term of such lease and does hereby declare
the same to be surplus property; and

RESOLVED, that Macon County does hereby authorize the entry into the Lease to Inovotex,
LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company, a copy of which is attached hereto and incorporated
herein by reference, for the period of one year from June 15, 2018, through June 14, 2019; and

RESOLVED, that Derek Roland, Macon County Manager, is hereby authorized and directed
to fill in any blanks upon the same and execute said Lease to Inovotex, LLC., a Delaware Limited
Liability Company, on behalf of Macon County.

Adopted at the August 14, 2018, Regular Meeting of the Macon County Board of
Commissioners.




ATTEST:

Derek Roland, Macon County Manager
and Clerk to the Board

( Official Seal )

James Tate, Chairman, Macon County Board of
County Commissioners




NORTH CAROLINA

MACON COUNTY
LEASE TO INOVOTEX, LLC,
A DELAWARE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY,
FROM MACON COUNTY

This lease is made this 15™ day of June, 2018, by and between MACON COUNTY, a
body corporate and politic organized and existing under the laws of the State of North Carolina,
hereinafter called the "Lessor,” and Inovotex, L.LL.C, a Delaware Limited Liability Company,
hereinafter called the "Tenant.”

WITNESSETH:

That, subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, the Landlord does hereby
demise and let and the Tenant does hereby rent and hire from the Landlord, those certain
premises (hereinafter referred to as the “Premises™) located at the Macon County Business
Development Center and more particularly shown in yellow and blue on Exhibit A attached
hereto and incorporated herein as limited hereinafter.

(1) Premises. Lessor leases unto the Tenant, and the Tenant accepts upon the full terms and
conditions of this lease, that certain space located in the Macon County Business Development
Center at the Macon County Industrial Park near Franklin, NC, as specifically shown in yellow
and blue on the drawing of the floor plan of the Business Development Center which is aitached
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference as limited hereinafter. The space
designated on the drawing attached hereto as Exhibit A in the color yellow is leased unto the
Tenant for Tenant's exclusive use. The spaces outlined in blue and designated on the drawing as
the Men's and Women's Restrooms, Lounge, Janitor's Closet, Corridors, Loading Dock, Halls
and Waiting Room may be used by Tenant for Tenant's non-exclusive use in common with any
other tenants in the Business Development Center and Lessor, together with such portion of the
premises as is reasonably necessary for access, parking and use of the leased premises.

(2) Term. Subject to the terms below, this lease shall commence June 15, 2018, and shall
continue for a term expiring June 14, 2019. THAT NOTWITHSTANDING ANYTHING TO
THE CONTRARY CONTAINED HEREIN, LESSOR MAY END THIS LEASE UPON 30
DAYS NOTICE TO TENANT WITHOUT LEGAL CONSEQUENCE.

(3} Rent. The Macon County Business Development Center is owned by Macon County as a
small business incubator to promote economic development and the growth of jobs in Macon
County. The lease of the premises to Tenant is in furtherance of that policy. The monthly rent for
the aforementioned space is $1,840.00 per month. Rent is due and payable on the 15* day of
each month in advance.




(4} Use of Premises. The leased premises shall only be used by Tenant for a business that does
clothing design and manufacturing.

(5) No Assignment. This lease shall not be assigned by Tenant nor shall Tenant sublet the leased
premises or any portion thereof.

(6) Tenant's Responsibilities for Repairs. Tenant agrees to accept the premises in their present
condition and to maintain the interior components of the portion of the premises leased to Tenant
in a good state of repair during the term of this lease. Interior components shall include the
floors, walls, ceilings, electrical components, lighting fixtures, plumbing and plumbing fixtures.
Tenant shall be responsible for interior repairs in the portions of the premises leased to it
exclusively and in common with other tenants. If other space in the Center is leased to existing
or additional tenants, the tenants shall establish a procedure by which all tenants using the
common area shall share in the cost of such maintenance. At termination, Tenant shall surrender
the premises to the Lessor in as good condition as they now are, except for ordinary wear and
tear incident to the use of the premises.

(7)Lessor's Responsibilities for Repairs. Lessor shall make all necessary repairs to the exterior of
the premises, including the parking and driveway areas, exterior walls, windows and roof. In the
event the premises or any part thereof are substantially damaged by fire or other casualty to the
extent that necessary repairs will exceed twenty percent of the value of the building, the parties
agree that Lessor shall have no obligation to make the repairs and Lessor may elect to either
make the necessary repairs or to terminate the lease.

(8)Maintenance. Tenant shall be solely responsible for all routine and recurring maintenance,
including cleaning, trash removal and painting of the interior portion of the premises leased to it
exclusively and the portion of the premises leased to is as common area with other tenants. If
other space is leased to existing or additional tenants, the tenants shall establish a procedure by
which all tenants using the common area shall share in the cost of such maintenance. Lessor
shall continue to maintain the exterior premises including the parking areas, driveways and
landscaping/mowing.

(9)Abatement of Nuisances and Appearance. Tenant shall comply with all laws, rules and
regulations of any governmental jurisdiction applicable to the leased premises and shall take all
measures necessary to prevent or abate nuisances or other grievances arising out of the manner
of the occupancy of the premises for its business purposes. Tenant shall further maintain the
appearance of the premises in manner that is aesthetically pleasing and consistent with other
business users in the neighborhood and shall not accumulate trash or debris nor display
merchandise on the premises.

(10)Utilities. Lessee shall be responsible for furnishing its utilities for Unit A shown on Exhibit
A attached hereto. Lessor will provide utilities for the balance of the leased premises.

(11)Alterations. Tenant shall not make any alterations, additions or improvements to the

2




premises without first obtaining written permission from the Lessor and any such alterations,
additions or improvements which are permitted shall inure to the benefit of the Lessor upon
expiration of the lease and surrender of the premises by the Tenant.

(12)Indemnification. Tenant shall indemnify Lessor and hold it harmless from and against any
and all claims, actions, damages, liability and expense in connection with the loss of life,
personal injury or damage to property occurring in or about, or arising out of, the leased
premises, or occasioned wholly or in part by any act or omission of Tenant, its agents, licensees,
concessionaires, customers or employees. In the event Lessor shall be made a party to any
litigation, commenced by or against Tenant, its agents, licensees, concessionaires, customers or
employees, then Tenant shall protect and hold Lessor harmless and shall pay all costs, expenses
and reasonable attorneys' fees included or paid by Lessor in connection with such litigation.

(13)Environmental Matters. With respect to any pollutants, contaminants, chemicals, or
industrial, toxic or hazardous substance or material defined as such in, or for purposes of, all
applicable environmental laws, rules, regulations and ordinances mnow or hereafter in effect
("Environmental Laws"), including without limitation, any waste constituents coming within the
definition or list of hazardous substances in 40 C.F.R. §§ 261.1 through 261.33 ("Hazardous
Material™), the Tenant represents, warrants and covenants that it will indemnify and hold Lessor
harmless from and against any and all losses, liabilities, damages, injuries, interest, deficiencies,
fines, penalties, costs, expenses, attorneys' fees, disbursements, and costs of investigation and
clean-up, including without limitation, claims, suits, and proceedings by federal, state, or local
government authorities with respect to, or as a direct or indirect result of (i) the presence on or
under, or the escape, seepage, leakage, spillage, discharge, emission, discharging or releasing
from, the property of any Hazardous Material, if such occurs during the term of the lease, (ii)
any other environmental pollution, including without limitation, any contaminant, waste, irritant
or pollutant, discharged into or otherwise contained in the environment at or adjacent to the
property if such occurs during the term of the lease, (iii) non-compliance relating to the Tenant's
business or the property with any Environmental Law or any other federal, state or local statute,
law, ordinance, rule, regulation, order or decree, or (iv) the inaccuracy, misrepresentation or
violation or default of or under any matter set forth in this section unless any such loss, Hability,
damage, injury or the like is directly caused by negligent acts of the Lessor. In addition, the
Tenant shall at all times keep on file with the Macon County Fire Marshall a list of any of the
materials, substances, or chemicals described in this paragraph and stored or kept on the leased
premises. '

(14)Incidents of Default. Each and every term of this lease is a material part of this lease and
continuation of the lease is conditioned on the parties’ adherence to its terms. The breach or
threatened breach of any of the lease terms by the Tenant shall be deemed an incident of default.
A declaration of insolvency or the filing of a petition of bankrupicy by the Tenant shall also be
deemed an incident of default. In the event Tenant defaults as defined in this paragraph, Lessor
may declare the lease terminated and retake possession of the premises upon allowing Tenant a
reasonable time to vacate the premises and remove its personal property from the premises.

In testimony whereof, the parties have signed this lease on the date first written above in

3




duplicate originals, one of which is retained by each of the parties.

COUNTY OF MACON

By:

Macon County Manager

Inovotex, LLC, a Delaware
Limited Liability Company

By:

President




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: August 14, 2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Transit
SUBJECT MATTER: Plan approvals
COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Transit Director Kim Angel is seeking board approval of three documents,
as follows:

1. Updated System Safety Plan

2. Continuity of Operations Plan

3. Updated Title VI Plan

Per Ms. Angel, the safety system plan is still a work in progress and will be
delivered to the board prior to or at the meeting. The two other plans are
attached for your review.

Attachments 2 Yes

Agenda Item 11B(1), (2) and (3)




Continuity of Operations (COOP) Plan

Macon County
5 West Main Street
Franklin, NC 28734

Adopted by Macon County Board of Commissioners:




FOREWORD

Local Communities have an ethical responsibility to ensure the safety of their county. They also
have a legal obligation to operate in a prudent and efficient manner, even during an impending
threat or following a disaster.

This continuity of operations (COOP) plan provides guidance for Macon County to perform its
essential functions as part of a COOP capability.

Recommended changes to this document may be addressed, at any time, to the Emergency
Services Office, 104 East Main Street, Franklin, NC 28734

Derek Roland, Manager




TABLE OF CONTENTS

I. INTRODUCTION ... teeeseemmsestiamstrae rean e eamenEesHdabeebePANeRe O ERSREE PSR R RS R S SRR SR seRE RO RS RAR SRS R ES 2
II.  PURPOSE ....ccvcriinniriinninnimssmsssnssmssmmssssssesssssmsssasessssarasasens eerrareeeaseeseestsest LS e b bs RS s sR s s e nseResas 2
OI. APPLICABILITY AND SCOPE............... .ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.
IV, ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS ....cocccerisrtsmssssonesasascsans amsss samsanessesnss s sass sesas asssss sesmmssnnasiassasssssarsssssanmnsesssasssessnssase 2
V. AUTHORITIES AND REFERENCES ...t ncticsses e seis s sesserssssnistabe rhasbissbabrsatbbnsstesss saonssbassns 3
V1. CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS...... rerestanssasanssssennestantansasn 3
A. PHASE[: ACTIVATION AND RELOCATION 4
l. " Decision Process 4

2. Alert, Notification, and Implementation Process 4
3. Leadership 3

B. PHASE II: ALTERNATE FACILITY OPERATIONS 5
1. Mission Critical Systems 5
2. Vital Files, Records, and Databases 5

C. PHASE III: RECONSTITUTION 6

VII. COOP PLANNING RESPONSIBILITIES ....cccuoncimrecarssserseasersssmsmsssmmrssssasstssssstssssresssaresssssesssssnsssssnssmssspanns 6

A.  CHIEF MUNICIPAL OFFICER 6

B. EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT DIRECT (SENIOR COOP OFFICIAL) 7
C. ERS SUPPORT QFFICIAL 7

D

. DEPARTMENT HEAD 7
E. COUNTYSTAFF 8
VIIL  LOGISTICS cceiceveeiiirsrerasmssismssmnsessnsasisssssessssbetns 64800004505 900 458 8040418000004 800858 KR BESRSASEESSSE00SS S RERRRES S R0ST S SuE 1S 8

A.  ALTERNATE LOCATION 8
B. INTEROPERABRLE COMMUNICATIONS 8

" IX. TEST, TRAINING, AND EXERCISES .......ccossmsmrssissmsssesssssssssssssmamsssnisssssssssassessassessssssassesssssssassnsass sassssnsasss 8

X. MULTI-YEAR STRATEGY AND PROGRAM MANAGEMENT ......cccouirirerevmrmmsmseriimsememssirenesmssssnssinsssssss 8
A. MULTIYEAR STRATEGY 8 _

XI. COOP PLAN MAINTENANCE ....ccocunstincsisssrmsmscssntsmisassssssssmsssssssasest sessssssessstosssssnsssssassssssssssss onssmsassenssases 9
ANNEX A: AUTHORITIES AND REFERENCES “ reesrevsarensanserra st rin b b A0SR E0H 10
ANNIX B: ALTERNATE LOCATION/FACILITY INFORMATION .....ccoureerens ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT
DEFINED.
ANNEX C: PLAN ACTIVATION AND NOTIFICATION................... ERROR! BOOKMARK NOT DEFINED.

ANNEX I); DEFINITIONS AND ACRONYMS ...cciiiiieverssesesssesresmssssinaistosssassssssestssssrasasssssspassssasensssasssasnases 14




Introduction

Macon County is located in the southwestern corner of North Carolina and covers an area of
approximately 517 square miles. It borders Clay County to the west, Swain County to the north,
Jackson County to the east, and the State of Georgia to the south. There are two municipal
governments located in Macon County: the Towns of Franklin and Highlands. In 2010 the U.S.
Census estimated the population of Macon County to be 34,100, with a significant seasonal
increase in the summer and fall months.

Purpose

This continuity of operations (COOP) plan for Macon County, hereinafter called County,
presents a management framework, establishes operational procedures to sustain essential
functions, and guides the restoration of full functions if normal operations in one or more of the
County’s locations are not feasible.

This plan was prepared in accordance with Department of Homeland Security (DHS)
Headquarters Continuity of Operations (COOP) Guidance Document, dated April 2004, which
provides a structure for formulating a COOP plan; Presidential Decision Directive—67, “Ensuring
Constitutional Government and Continuity of Government Operations,” which requires all
Federal departments and agencies to have a viable COOP capability; and Commonwealth of
Massachusetts Executive Order No. 144, which requires all Commonwealth agencies and local
communities to prepare for emergencies and disasters.

This document focuses on the basic COOP elements: essential functions, critical systems,
alternative facilities, orders of succession, delegations of authority, and vital records.
Development of procedures that address the basic COOP elements and work in concert with
business continuity and disaster recovery plans allows for uninterrupted delivery of the County’s
essential functions.

This document applics to the full spectrum of threats and emergencies that may affect the
County. Specifically, this COOP plan is based on an event scenario that disrupts the County’s
essential functions. In this scenario, the County location is closed for normal business activities.
The most likely causes of such disruption are severe winter storms (i.e., ice or snow), widespread
utility failure, multiple explosions, civil disturbance, or credible threats of actions that would
preclude access to or use of County facilities. Under this scenario, County offices relocate staff
and resources to a remote facility identified as the Emergency Relocation Site (ERS).

Essential functions

This COOP plan is based on the County’s essential functions. It serves as an operational guide
to facilitate the relocation of County staff to an ERS and the backup of critical systems and vital
records so that essential functions may continue. The level and manner of support needed to
continue essential functions is dependent on the nature of an event. This plan describes the
processes and procedures needed to support continuation of essential functions identified in the
following table.




Priority Department Essential Functions

1 IT Information technology and processing
2 9-1-1 Primary Safety Answering Point

3 Administration Payroll, accounting, vital records

4 SO Jail Inmate Housing

5 DSS/PH Essential public services

6 Transit Client Transportation

7

8

9

A specific County department oversees each essential function listed above, which, in turn, is
supported by specific critical systems and/or vital records. Therefore, to maintain an operational
status, the County must support the required department (staff), critical systems, and vital records
at the ERS,

Authorities and References '
Authority, support, and justification for continuity of operations (COOP) planning are provided
through the documents listed in Annex A.

Concept of Operations

A COOQP plan must be maintained at a high level of preparedness and be ready to be
implemented without significant prior warning. It should be implemented fully no later than 12
hours after activation and provide guidance to sustain operations for up to 30 days. The broad
objective of this COOP plan is to provide for the safety and well-being of County employees. In
addition, this plan will facilitate the execution of the County’s essential functions during any
crisis or emergency in which one or more County locations are threatened or not accessible.
Specific County COOP Plan objectives include the following:

« LEnable staff to perform essential functions to prepare for and respond to the full spectrum
of possible threats or emergencies including terrorism, technological catastrophes, natural
or manmade disasters, and other crises.

« Identify key principals and supporting staff who will relocate.

« Ensure that the Emergency Relocation Site (ERS) can support Emergency Relocation
Group (ERG) operations.

- Protect and maintain vital records and critical systems.

An emergency, such as an explosion, fire, or hazardous materials incident, may require the
evacuation of one or more County locations with little or no advance notice. Building
evacuation, if required, is accomplished via implementation of Occupant Emergency Plans for
each location. This COOP Plan is not an evacuation plan, rather, it provides for a deliberate and
preplanned movement of selected principals and supporting staff to the ERS.

Following an incident so severe that one or more County locations are rendered unusable, or if
such an event appears imminent, the Chief Municipal Officer instructs the Emergency
Management Director or Senior COOP Official to activate the County COOP Plan. The




Emergency Management Director or Senior COOP Official deploys the appropriate members of

the ERG.

Phase I: Activation and Relocation

The extent to which orderly alert and notification is possible depends on the amount of
warning received, whether personnel are on duty at County locations or off duty at home or
elsewhere, and, possibly, the extent of risk for County personnel or locations. :

Decision Process

Execution of this COOP plan focuses on continuing the County’s essential functions
via the relocation of select personnel, ERS operations, and critical systems recovery.
This COOP plan may be executed in several phases that are delimited by the time
from warning dissemination and the activities being performed. Depicted below is
the County’s decision process.

0-24hrs

yes Implement
Contingency
Pans

Ipiement
Evacuate Qccupant Evert
Locatlon 7 Emergency Moni oring
Pans
no
no
Retumto Raoccupy
Nos “_' Lacation
Operations

Activate
COOPPan

Inplement COOP
atERS

Returnto
Normal
Operations.

Reoccupy
Eocation ?

ne

mplement
Raconstitution
Plans

Any disaster, whether natural, manmade, or technological, that adversely affects the
County’s ability to perform essential functions, requires activation of this plan.

Alert, Notification, and Implementation Process

County staff will be contacted with alert and notification information using the

following contact lists.

« Derek Roland, Manager

« Mike Decker, HR Director
« Andy Muncey, IT Director
+ Steve Ledford, Maintenance Director

828-349-2025
828-349-2020
828-349-2177
828-349-2072

Note: Information and guidance for County members is normally relayed by network
messages, ¢-mail, or phone using existing emergency calling plans. All members of
the Emergency Relocation Group (ERG) will be notified initially by phone; however,
other County staff members will be notified via network alerts and/or public address
announcements, as appropriate. Depending on the situation, current information may
also available via announcements released to and made by local radio and TV

stations.

Employees should listen for specific instructions.




Leadership
a. Orders of Succession

In the event of a vacancy in the position of County Manager, or the absence of the
incumbent in this position, another individual serving in an acting capacity shall
temporarily assume the duties of the position.

« Mike Decker, HR Director §28-349-2025

b. Delegations of Authority

Delegations of authority from the position of County Manager are established to
ensure the ability of County staff members to perform essential functions while
remaining a viable part of the organization.

The Macon County Board of Commissioners may convene an emergency meeting
to name an interim Manager as necessary.

Phase Il: Alternate Facility Operations

Alternative facilities (i.e., ERSs) must be capable of supporting operations in a threat-free
environment in the event that essential functions and supporting staff are relocated to the
site. A relocation site must have sufficient space and equipment to sustain operations for a
period of up to 30 days. An ERS must also have the appropriate physical security and
access controls.

The Senior COOP Official, or designated alternate, conducts semiannual reviews of the
space allocations with each ERS Support Official to ensure the adequacy of space and other
resources.

Mission Critical Systems

In general, the telecommunication and information system support provided at
County locations is available independently at the ERS. It is imperative that the
Senior COOP Official ensures that unique or critical information system requirements
are considered in planning and, if appropriate, identified as capabilities to be provided
by support organizations at the ERS. County offices shall maintain all necessary and
up-to-date files, computer software, and databases required to carry out essential
functions.

System Name Current Location  Other Locations

9-1-1 Communications 104 E Main St 125 Hyatt Rd

Vital Files, Records, and Databases

One COOP Plan responsibilities is to comply with the U.S. National Archives and
Records Administration Code of Regulations, Subchapter B — Records Management,
to ensure the protection and continuous availability of vital records. Vital records are




documents, references, and records, regardless of media type, that are needed to
support essential functions under the full spectrum of emergencies and disasters.

All vital records must be protected from damage or destruction. County vital records
are stored in a properly equipped, environmentally controlled facility that is secure
but also accessible when needed for records retrieval. The Senior COOP Official is
to make certain that databases and other references supporting the essential functions
of the County are prepositioned at each ERS, carried with deploying personnel, or
available through a backup process.

Over time, vital records become outdated and require updating through a process
called cycling. Inclusion of cycling procedures in the Vital Records Management
Program ensures that vital records are current and accurate when needed.

Vital File, Record, Form of Pre-positioned Hand Carried Backed up at
or Database Record {e.g., at Alternate to Alternate Third

hardcopy, Facility Facility Location
electronic)
IT System electronic Yes No Yes

Phase lil: Reconstitution

Within hours of relocating to the ERS, the Senior Official initiates operations to salvage,
restore, and recover the County location(s). These reconstitution efforts generally begin
when the County Manager, or other authorized person, ascertains, in coordination with
Federal, State, and local authorities that the emergency situation has ended and is unlikely
to recur. However, once the appropriate County official determines that the emergency has
ended, immediate reconstitution may not be practical. Depending on the situation, one of
the following options should be considered for implementation:

+ Continue to operate from the ERS.

« Begin an orderly return to County locations and reconstitute from remaining
County offices or other resources

« Begin to establish a reconstituted County in some other facility.

COOP Planning Responsibilities

County Manager
. Provides overall policy direction, guidance, and objectives for COOP planning.
« Provides policy direction, guidance, and objectives during an incident for the
implementation of the COOP Plan.
. Consults with and advises appropriate officials during implementation of the
COOP Plan.




Serves as the principal County representative to external parties and groups
during implementation of the COOP Plan.

Emergency Management Director

[ ]

Serves as the County COOP program point of contact.

Coordinates implementation of the COOP Plan and initiates appropriate
notifications inside and outside the County during COOP Plan implementation.
Coordinates the COOP Training, Testing, and Exercising Program.

Aids ERG efforts at the ERS.

Initiates recovery of County, as part of reconstitution.

ERS Support Official

Prepares site support plans to support the implementation of the COOP Plan to
facilitate the smooth transition of direction and operations from the County
location(s) to the ERS.

Provides for the proper storage of backup copies of vital records and other pre-
positioned items.

Designates personnel responsible to assist the arriving ERG Advance Team.
Maintains a current roster of designated site support staff.

Supports periodic coordination visits by County offices.

Keeps the Senior COOP Official informed of site vulnerabilities or changes in
site resources that may impact the effective implementation of the COOP Plan.
Requests an annual security risk assessment of the ERS by security staff to
assist in ensuring COOP relocation site readiness.

Coordinates appropriate billeting arrangements with the ERS, if appropriate, for
employees who will not commute and need to remain overnight near the ERS.
Conducts periodic coordination visits to the ERS.

Participates in scheduled tests, training, and exercises.

Department head

Appoints a COOP point of contact for coordination and implementation of the
COOP Plan.

Keeps the Manager informed of any changes in the designation of the office
COOQOP point of contact.

Identifies essential functions to be performed when any element of the County
is relocated as part of the COOP Plan.

Identifies those functions that can be deferred or temporarily terminated in the
event the COOP Plan is implemented.

Maintaing a current roster of office personnel designated as ERG members.
Maintains current personnel emergency notification and relocation rosters.
Prepares backup copies or updates of vital records.

Ensures that the time and attendance function is represented on the ERG.
Designates personnel to assist security officials in securing office equipment
and files at County locations when implementing the COOP Plan.

Conducts periodic tests of the office telephone notification cascade(s).




County Staff

« Review and understand the procedures for emergency evacuation of County
locations in the Occupant Emergency Plan. _

+ Review and understand responsibilities related to COOP support functions and
performance of County essential functions at a relocation site.

« Report to work to perform essential functions as detailed in this COOP plan or
as requested.

« Provide current contact information to supervisors.

Logistics

Alternate Location

The County has two (2) designated Emergency Operations Centers for support following
an event that disables the infrastructure supporting County activities that occur at
department offices. Alternate locations will be identified by each department. Relocation
sites must have adequate space, the necessary equipment, and the connectivity to support
relocating each group responsible for performing essential functions.

interoperable Communications

The success of County operations at the Emergency Relocation Site (ERS) depends upon
the availability and redundancy of significant communication systems to support
connectivity to internal organizations, other agencies, critical customers, and the public.
Interoperable communication should provide a capability to correspond with the County’s
cssential functions, to communicate with other Federal agencies, State agencies, and local
emergency support personnel, and to access other data and systems necessary to conduct all
activities.

Test, Training, and Exercises

A changing threat environment and recent events emphasize the need for COOP capabilities that
enable the County to continue its essential functions across a broad spectrum of emergencies.
Federal Preparedness Circular (FPC) 66, in accordance with FPC 65, states that testing, training,
and exercising of COOP capabilities are necessary to demonstrate and improve the ability of
agencies to execute their essential functions.

Multi-Year Strategy and program Management

Multiyear strategy

The County COOP Plan Multiyear Strategy includes the objectives and key strategies for
developing and maintaining a viable COOP program, including the support for short- and
long-term initiatives.

B. PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

The Program Management Plan is a critical element of the County’s strategic planning
activities because it documents the tactics executed to achieve the initiatives in the




multiyear strategy. It describes the County’s needs, defines roles.and responsibilities, and
documents specific program timelines. . In addition, it provides an effective program
management tool for oversight, resource allocation, and progress evaluation.

COOQP Plan Maintenance

To maintain viable COOP capabilities, the County is continually engaged in a process to
designate essential functions and resources, define short- and long-term COOP goals and
objectives, forecast budgetary requirements, anticipate and address issues and potential
obstacles, and establish planning milestones. Following is a list of standardized list of activities
necessary to monitor the dynamic elements of the County COOP Plan and the frequency of their
occurrence.

Activity Tasks Frequency
Plan update and * Review entire plan for accuracy. Annually
certification » Incorporate lessons learned and changes in

policy and philosophy.
* Manage distribution.

Maintain orders of + identify current incumbents. ' Semiannually
succession and » Update rosters and contact information.
delegations of authority
Maintain emergency * Check all systems. Monthly
relocation site ' * Verify accessibility.
readiness . .
* Cycle supplies and equipment, as necessary.
Monitor and maintain * Monitor volume of materials. Ongoing
vital records * Update/remove files.

management program




Annex A: Authorities and References
Authority, support, and justification for continuity of operations (COOP) planning are
provided through the documents listed below.

Federal Guidance

Executive Order 12148—Federal Emergency Management. EO 12148 establishes Federal
policies and coordinates civil emergency planning, management, and assistance functions. It
also establishes the President’s role in working with State and local governments.

Executive Order 12472—Establishment of the National Communications System. EQO 12472
establishes the National Communication Systems as a Federal interagency group assigned
national security and emergency preparedness telecommunications responsibility throughout the
full spectrum of emergencies. Responsibilities include planning, developing, and implementing
enhancements to the national telecommunications infrastructure to achieve measurable
improvements in survivability, interoperability, and operational effectiveness under all
conditions. This is accomplished by effective management and by using national
telecommunication resources to support the Government during any emergency.

Executive Order 12656—Assignment of Emergency Preparedness Responsibilities. EQ 12656
is the foundation of these mandates. It requires Federal agencies to develop plans and
procedures that ensure the survival of the U.S. Constitution and American Government by
enabling them to continue to provide essential functions and services during and following a
disaster or emergency. Executive Order 12656 assigns national security management
preparedness responsibilities to Federal departments and agencies.

Presidential Decision Directive 63. PDD-63 is a national-level effort to ensure the security of
the increasingly vulnerable and interconnected infrastructure of the United States. It requires
departments and agencies to develop a plan for protecting critical infrastructures, including
telecommunications, banking and finance, energy, transportation, and other essential functions
and services. The directive addresses those services provided by Federal, State, and local
governments.

Presidential Decision Directive 67. PDD-67 directs the Federal executive branch departments
and agencies to have a viable COOP Plan and capability. Departments and agencies must be
able to operate at their alternative facilities with or without warning no longer than 12 hours after
the disaster and to maintain sustained operations for a minimum period of up to 30 days. The
plans identify those requirements necessary to support the primary functions, such as emergency
communications, establishing a chain of command, and delegations of authority.

Executive Order 13228—Establishing the Office of Homeland Security and the Homeland
Security Council. EO 13228 establishes the Office of Homeland Security in response to the
terrorist attacks on September 11, 2001. Responsibilities of the office include developing and
coordinating the implementation of a comprehensive national strategy to secure the United States
from terrorist threats or attacks. The office shall coordinate the executive branch’s efforts to
detect, prepare for, prevent, protect against, respond to, and recover from terrorist attacks within
the United States.

Executive Order 13231—Critical Infrastructure Protection in the Information Age. EO 1323]
establishes a protection program that consists of continual efforts to secure information systems




for critical infrastructure that includes emergency preparedness communications. To achieve this
policy, there will be a senior executive branch committee to coordinate that will have cognizance
over all Federal efforts and programs involving continuity of operations, continuity of
government, and Federal department and agency information systems protection.

Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, Amended (U.S. Code Title
42 Section 5121). This act provides for an orderly and continual means of assistance by the
Federal Government to state and local governments for carrying out their responsibilities to
alleviate the suffering and damage that result from disasters. 42 USC 5121 encourages the
development of comprehensive disaster preparedness and assistance plans, programs,
capabilities, and organizations by the States and local governments.

U.S. National Archives & Records Administration (NARA) Code of Federal Regulations. The
NARA Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Subchapter B, Records Management, provides
guidance and prescribes policies for records management programs relating to record creation
and maintenance, adequate documentation, and proper record disposition.

Homeland Security Presidential Directive—1. The Homeland Security Council (HSC) shall
ensure coordination of all homeland security-related activities among executive departments and
agencies and promote the effective development and implementation of all homeland security
policies. The HSC Principals Committee (HSC/PC) shall be the senior interagency forum under
the HSC for homeland security issues. The HSC Deputies Committee (HSC/DC) shall serve as
the senior sub-Cabinet interagency forum for consideration of policy issues affecting homeland
security. HSC Policy Coordination Committees (HHSC/PCC) shall coordinate the development
and implementation of homeland security policies by multiple departments and agencies
throughout the Federal Government, and shall coordinate those policies with State and local
government.

Homeland Security Presidential Directive-3. The Homeland Security Advisory System
provides warnings in the form of a set of graduated “Threat Conditions™ that would increase as
the risk of the threat increases. At each threat condition, Federal departments and agencies
implement a corresponding set of “Protective Measures” to further reduce vulnerability or
increase response capability during a period of heightened alert. This system is intended to
create a common vocabulary, context, and structure for an ongoing national discussion about the
nature of the threats that confront the homeland and the appropriate measures that should be
taken in response. It seeks to inform and facilitate decisions appropriate to different levels of
government and to private citizens at home and at work.

FEMA Federal Preparedness Circular (FPC) No. 65-Federal Executive Branch Continuity of
Operations (COOP). FPC 65 provides guidance to Federal executive branch departments and
agencies for developing viable and executable contingency plans for continuity of operations.
COOP planning facilitates the performance of department/agency essential functions during any
emergency or situation that may disrupt normal operations. FPC 65 requires that each agency
appoint a senior Federal Government executive as an emergency coordinator to serve as program
manager and agency point of contact for coordinating agency COOP activities. This ensures
continuous performance of an agency’s essential functions during an emergency and protects
essential facilities, equipment, records, and other assets. The actions recommended in FPC 65
will reduce disruptions to operations and loss of life, and minimize damage and losses. It




achieves a timely and orderly recovery from an emergency and resumption of full service to
customers.

Federal Preparedness Circular No. 66—Test, Training and Exercise (TT&E) Program for
Continuity of Operations (COOP). FPC 66 provides guidance to Federal executive branch
departments and agencies for use in developing viable and executable TT&E programs to
support the implementation and validation of COOP plans. These activities are important
elements of a comprehensive emergency preparedness program necessary to improve the ability
of agencies to effectively manage and execute their COOP plans.

Federal Preparedness Circular No. 67-Acquisition of Alternate Facilities for Continuity of
Operations (COOP). FPC 67 provides guidance to Federal executive branch departments and
agencies for acquiring alternative facilities to support their COOP. FPC 67 requires agencies to
designate alternative operating facilities as part of their COOP plans and prepare their personnel
for the possibility of sudden relocation of essential functions or COOP contingency staff to these
facilities should an emergency necessitate that action.

Commonwealth of Massachusetts Guidance

Governor’s Executive Order No. 144. EO 144 requires all Commonwealth Agencies to prepare
for emergencies and disasters, and to provide emergency liaisons to the Massachusetts
Emergency Management Agency for coordinating resources, training, and operations.

Survivable Crisis Management Plan 1994. The Commonwealth of Massachusetts Survivable
Crisis Management (SCM) Plan provides the foundation and structural framework for managing
the individual capabilities of the different agencies with emergency response and continuity of
government responsibilities.

Commonwealth of Massachusetts Chapter 639 of the Acts of 1950, Chapter 33. The legislation
provides basic Civil Defense / Emergency Management responsibilities for meeting dangers
presented to the Commonwealth and its people by emergencies and disasters. The document
directs preparedness efforts related to common defense, protection of the public peace, health,
security and safety.




Emergency
Level

Type of Events

COOP Plan
Activation Authority

Notification Method

{Local (Fire, attack on your Derek Roland (828) 347-2405
Emergency) headquarters’, etc.)

(Regional or (Hurricane, flood or other Derek Roland (828) 347-2405
National localized disasters)

Emergency)

(National (Terrorist use of weapons of Derek Roland (828) 347-2405
Security mass destruction)

Emergency)




Annex D: Definitions and Acronyms
The following terms or phrases are found in this document.

Advance Team. ERG personnel who immediately deploy to the Emergency Relocation Site
(ERS) upon receiving a COOP warning or activation, to initiate actions at the ERS in preparation
for the arrival of the main body of Emergency Personnel. Advance Team plus Emergency
Personnel constitute an ERG.

Business Continuity Plan (BCP). The BCP provides procedures for sustaining an
organization’s business functions during and after a disruption. An example of a business
function may be an organization’s payroll process or consumer information process. A BCP
may be written for a specific business process or may address all key business processes.

Business Recovery Plan (BRP). The BRP addresses the restoration of business processes after
an emergency, but unlike the BCP, lacks procedures to ensure continuity of critical processes
throughout an emergency or disruption.

Continuity of Operations (COOP) Plan. An action plan that provides for the immediate
continuity of essential functions of an organization at an alternative facility for up to 30 days in
the event an emergency prevents occupancy of its primary facility.

Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP). The DRP applies to major, usually catastrophic, events that
deny access to the normal facility for an extended period. Frequently, DRP refers to an IT-
focused plan designed to restore operability of the target system, application, or computer facility
at a relocation site after an emergency.

Emergency Personnel. The key principals and staff members of the ERG, responsible for the
execution of essential functions. Advance Team plus Emergency Personnel constitute an ERG.

Emergency Relocation Group (ERG). Predesignated principals and staff who move to a
relocation site to continue essential functions in the event that locations are threatened or
incapacitated. The ERG comprises Advance Team plus Emergency Personnel.

Emergency Relocation Site (ERS). A remote alternative facility to which the ERG moves to
continue essential functions in the event that traditional work sites are incapacitated.

Essential functions. Essential functions are those functions, stated or implied, that are required
to be performed by statute or Executive order, or other functions deemed essential by the heads
of principal organizational elements (i.e., administrators, office directors, and division directors).

Occupant Emergency Plan (OEP). The OEP provides the response procedures for occupants of
a facility in the event a situation poses a threat to the health and safety of personnel, the
environment, or property. Such events include a fire, hurricane, criminal attack, or a medical
emergency.

Point of Contact (POC). The designated focal point for actions involving a specific plan, as in
“COOP POC.”

Relocation Site (RS) Support Official. Serves as the COOP point of contact at each ERS.
Responsible for the readiness and operational condition of the ERS, as appropriate, including

telecommunications, infrastructure, and equipment; and support the billeting and meal needs of -
the ERG. '




Senior COOP Official. Serves as the COOP point of contact. Responsible for coordinating
implementation of the COOP Plan; initiating appropriate notifications inside and outside the
Agency during COOP Plan implementation; being the point of contact for all COOP training,

testing, and exercising; assisting ERG efforts at the ERS; and initiating recovery of the Agency
as part of reconstitution.




CERTIFICATION PAGE

I have reviewed and approved this plan for Macon County. During this review suggestions were
made and included in this plan. The plan will be continually updated and reviewed as necessary
to remain current.

Manager, Macon County ~ Date

EM Director, Macon County Date




Macon County
Transit

i nqﬁ::m\:rigindisabilitv ;;hcéescnmmo’r e
itle I
nts Og@ i Vll rlgh‘ts llghf rcul Q --

color gender EJ "”*‘%

) opporurity LEP cauaily e
'Vglrc_msfr P

e Adopted




TITLE VI PLAN REVIEW AND ADOPTION

On behalf of the Macon County Board of Commissioners for Macon County Transit (MCT) | hereby
acknowledge receipt of the Title VI Nondiscrimination Plan. We, the board, have reviewed and hereby
adopt this Plan. We are committed to ensuring that all decisions are made in accordance with the
nondiscrimination guidelines of this Plan, to the end that no person is excluded from participation in, denied
the benefits of, or otherwise subjected to discrimination under any Macon County Transit fransportation
services and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, creed {religion), or disability, as
protected by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the nondiscrimination provisions of the Federal
Transit Administration.

Chairman, Board of Commissioners DATE




Table of Contents

Titie VI Nondiscrimination AZreement ... ...t ecsis s s et n e e e e e 5
Fa0 INEFOAUCTION .ottt a s st e s e et e s e s m e e e s d S oAb d s ba b LR e e an e S e s ue e R aE e e n A e s b e asasae b RaE e m e s e s et eanns 6
2.0 Description of Programs and SEeIviCeS.......c.ociociiiiiiiiisiin i et e e 6
2.1 Program(s} and Services AdMINISTErEd ......ccoiiciririe et s st 6
2.2 FUNAINE SOUPCES / TaBIES ittt ittt et n bbb e s n e st e sr s n e e s n e e e 6
2.3 Decision-Making Process.......ooccevienanns SO OO USSP OV T OISO 7
2.4 Title VI CoOrdinator i e 8
2.5 Change of Title VI COOrINATOr ..ccuv ettt st e ettt ch st e et st n s e s e e 9
2.6 Organizational CNare. o e e s e e e 9
A L = ol o 1= 1 €= OO T O T OSSO U PP DIPTSR 9
3.0 Title V1 Nondiscrimination Policy Statement..........c.oocoi it 10
4.0 Notice of NONdISCHMINAtION .....ioveeeieeiri et e e e st be s s a s s ae e 11
5.0 Procedures to Ensure Nondiscriminatory Administration of Programs and Services..........cccoevicinns 12
6.0 Contract AdMINTSErAtION .....cc.eiivvvee e er ettt et et a s sr s e e e e s e e s ke s sh bbb e s b n s i3
T A e TN o = ot =T o= U= O OO P OO O P ORI PO PP PSP 13
6.2 Nondiscrimination Notice to Prospective BIdders ...ttt 14
7.0 External Discrimination Complaint Procedures..........covviiniiniiinnninns ST POV UOTOPRON 15
Discrimination Complaint FOTM ..ottt e e e e b e 17
DiserimMination COMPIAINTS LOE . .v.cvtiertererereercr ittt it iab s e s ms e e e aa s s ea s e as st s b b e bbb s van s 19
INVESTIZATIVE GUILENCE 1euveiteiteeiesieeeessemee e e e r e et bbb et et eh e b e b e sbe s m e s bs s pa s g9 o2 e m e e b e s E e n bk s bbb e an bbb 20
SAMPLE Investigative Report TEMPLaTe vt st e e e 21
8.0 Service Area Population Characteristics ... e 23
8.1 RACE AN ELNNICILY w1reureiireitrrenres it sttt et e sb e e e sa s bs g2 a e 2t e e nE e EebE bt s bbb e b e s b 23
B.2 AEE B SBNuruieiiiiiiieeteeissteter e asre e e e s e e e et si s E e e s b bR e b e LS e ks R RS e TSR SRS ee bbb s 23
e T T3-S PO OO PP PO PIO PSRN 24
Bl POVEITY tovuiiriiieeerieiessteoseeriassmeesceeeeamdee b bs s tabtahe s 1AL s p b b e ae S e Rt e e b E e em R e ne A e pE e S e ot S e e eSS e s 25
8.5 HOUSENOID TNCOMIB. i icrieittr s e e e et e e e st cebee st e s s bt e shb e e s e s st hbar e r e e s s s ee s smneermnea ke s iabeebnassrsranenesans 25
8.6 Limited English Proficiency POPUlEtions. ...t 25
8.7 POPUIBLION LOCATIONS woereititerrirrcee e crcr ettt it b bbb s s s b s b e s e ir s sa s p a2 e e e s bbbt s bbbt e n bbb 25
9.0 Title VI Equity Analyses (and Environmental Justice ASSeSSMENtS)........ccovvereminieiiiecieie e 25
10.0 PUbBBiC TRVOIVEMENE ...t isiree e eee et s et e s rare s an et b e st s b s rr e s s eesmmsemsn e s ba ekt s ebbe st s s st nn e 26
Ko T 101 oY 1T [ WO O DO U OOV UROU VO TP PSPPI 26
10.2 PUBE NOTITICATION 1tveiiiiiiteieittiesiseresssarres e eeeee bt et e siabs s s s abeas s s e s e b e e s s ke b e s bt asaasrn s aesnase e ssanasabesassanbes 26




10.3 OQOutreach Tools
10.4 Limited English ProfiCi Ny o ittt st s st s nn e 28
10.5 DEMOBIAPRIC REGUESE.c..eerriecere e isascs s s sras b st sssnssstsss sessrabbe e ss s ss s ensenb st abbesbes bbb s srsasssse s B

10.6 Key COMMUNILTY COMTACES wrieirecie ittt st s s 30
10.7 Summary of Qutreach Efforts Since the Last Title VI Program Submission ... eenniieniecenes 31
B I T T O O T O T U OO PP S PSPPSR TOTI PP 31
12.0 Nonelected Boards and Committees — By Race and Gender ... s e 31
13.0 Record-Keeping and REPOMES ............v oottt st e 32
B Yo (=T o o o= OO U s O PO S PO OO OO O S OO PSR UPSUPSE 33

Appendix A — Applicable Nondiscrimination Authorities

Appendix B — Organizational Chart

Appendix C— NCDOT's Transit Review Checklist

Appendix D — Annual Education and Acknowledgment Form

Appendix E — Language Spoken at Home By Ability to Speak English For the Population 5 Years and Over
Appendix F — Transit Advisory Board (TAB) Composition

Appendix G- Demographic Request Form




In accordance with DOT Order 1050.2A, Macon County Transit (MCT) assures the North Carolina Department of
Transportation (NCDOT) that no person shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, Creed (Religion), age,
or disability, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 and related
nondiscrimination authorities, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination or retaliation under any program or activity undertaken by Macon County Transit.

Further, Macon County Transit hereby agrees to:

1.

Designate a Title V! Coordinator that has a responsible position within the organization and easy access to
the Transit Director of the organization.

Issue a policy statement, signed by the Transit Director of the organization, which expresses a commitment
to the nondiscrimination provisions of Title VI and related applicable statutes. The signed policy statement
shall be posted and circulated throughout the organization and fo the general public, and published where
appropriate in languages other than English. The policy statement will be re-signed when there is a change
of Transit Director.

Insert the clauses of the contract language from Section 6.1 in every contract awarded by the organization.
Ensure that every contract awarded by the organization's contractors or consultants also includes the
contract language.

Process all and, when required, investigate complaints of discrimination consistent with the procedures
contained within this Plan. Log all complaints for the administrative record.

Collect statistical data {race, color, national origin, sex, age, disability} on participants in, and beneficiaries
of, programs and activities carried out by the organization.

Participate in training offered on Titte VI and other nondiscrimination requirements. Conduct or request
training for employees or the organization's sub-recipients.

Take affirmative action, if reviewed or investigated by NCDOT, to correct any deficiencies found within a
reasonable time period, not to exceed 90 calendar days, unless reasonable provisions are granted by
NCDOT.

Document all Title VI nondiscrimination-related activities as evidence of compliance. Submit information and
reports to NCDOT on a schedule outlined by NCDOT.

THIS AGREEMENT is given in consideration of, and for the purpose of obtaining, any and all federal and state funds,
grants, loans, contracts, properties, discounts or other financial assistance under all transportation programs and
activities and is binding.

Derek C. Roland, Macon County Manager

Date




1.0 INTRODUCTION

Title VI of the 1964 Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. 2000d provides that: "No person in the United States shall, on the ground of
race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination
under any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.” The broader application of nondiscrimination law is
found in other statutes, executive orders, and regulations, which provide additional protections based on age, sex, creed
{religion), and disability, including the 1987 Civil Rights Restoration Act, which extended nondiscrimination coverage to alt
programs and activities of federal-aid recipients, sub-recipients, and contractors, including those that are not federally-
funded (see Appendix A — Applicable Nondiscrimination Authorities).

Macon County Transit (MCT) is a recipient of Federal financial assistance from the North Carolina Department of
Transportation (NCDOT) and the United States Department of Transpertation (USDOT), receiving Federal Transit
Administration (FTA) funds through the NCDOT. As the primary recipient of USDOT funds in North Carolina, the NCDOT's
comprehensive Title VI Nondiscrimination Program includes compliance oversight and technical assistance responsibilities
towards its sub-recipients and those sub-recipients must use federal and state funds in a nondiscriminatory manner.

Macon County Transit establishes this Title VI Nondiscrimination Plan for the purpose of complying with Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, as required by FTA Circular 4702.1B, and related requirements cutlined under Group 01.D,
“Nondiscrimination Assurance,” of the FTA Certifications and Assurances. This document details the nondiscrimination
program, policies, and practices administered by this organization, and will be updated periodically to incorporate changes
and additional responsibilities as they are made. This Plan will be submitted to NCDOT or FTA, upon request.

20 DESCRIPTION OF PROGRAMS AND SERVICES

2.1 PROGRAM{S) AND SERVICES ADMINISTERED
Macon County Transit provides the following public transportation options to its customers within Macon County:

1. Deviated Fixed Route — operates Monday — Friday from 8:00 am until 4:30 pm (last run). Route includes 8 designated
stops, will make stops in between designated stops and will deviate up to % mile from route upen request. Buses will
be at each stop every 30 minutes Fares are $1 per boarding, $18 for 20 tickets, or $30 for an unlimited monthly pass.
Deviated Fixed Route vehicles are ADA accessible.

2. Demand Response - Operates Monday — Friday from 6:00 am until 5:00 pm. Available to all citizens of Macon
County. All trips should be scheduled as far in advance as possible but at least by 12:00PM the day before. ADA
accessible vehicles are available. Fares are $3.00 per boarding for local general public trips; there are discount rates
available for the elderly and/or disabled passengers. Out of county fares depends on the location of the trip.

Macon County Transit has the following staff:

Transit Director (1), Transit Assistant Director (1), Transit Operations Supervisor (1), Dispatcher/Scheduler (1), Transit
Administrative Support Assistant (1), Full-Time Drivers (4) and Part-time Transit Drivers (19)

2.2  FUNDING SOURCES | TABLES

For the purpose of federally-assisted programs, "federal assistance” shall include:
1. grants and loans of Federal funds;
2. the grant or donation of Federal property and interest in property;
3. the detail of Federal personnel;




4, the sale and lease of, and the permission to use (on other than a casual or transient basis}), Federal property or
any interest in such property without consideration or at a nominal consideration, or at a consideration which is
reduced for the purpose of assisting the recipient, or in recognition of the public interest to be served by such sale
or lease to the recipient; and

5. any Federal agreement, arrangement, or other contract which has, as one of its purposes, the provision of
assistance.

Each FTA Formula Grant received by our system, and whether the funds were received through NCDOT or directly from
FTA, is checked below. Additional details are provided on how often each of the grants is received {annually, first time,
stc.)

to improve mcbility for seniors and individuals with disabilities
5310 (Transporiation for Elderly Persons and < 0 throughout the country, by removing barriers (o fransportation services
Persons with Disabilities) and expanding the transportation mobility oplions available, annually
upon approval

. to enhance the access of people in nonurbanized areas to health care,

i::;;s()Formula Grants for Cihe than Urbanized [ ] shopping, education, employment, public services and recreation;
annually upon approval

{0 assist in the design and implementation of training and technical

. . assistance projecis and other support sefvices tailored to meet the

5311 {bK3) (Rural Transit Assistance) X [ needs of trapnsijt operators in nonurbanized areas, annually upon

approval

tc encourage new services and facility improvements fo address the
transportation needs of persons with disabilities that go beyond those

537 (New Freedom) X L required by the Americaﬁs with Disabilities Act (ADA), annually upon

approval

to provide technical assistance to include project planning, program

and management development, public transportation coordination

activities, and research to promote effective delivery of public

. . . fransportation in rural areas of the designated Appalachian region, and

g;z;'{éﬁgg?,l?oc;r':; ?:S?g[;r;ent Transportation X ] (8) to enhance and improve access to jobs through employment-
refated transportation services for welfare recipients and eligible low-

income individuals; this includes transportation of residents from

urbanized and rural areas to suburban employment opporiunities,

annually upon approval

2.3 DECISION-MAKING PROCESS

The transportation advisory board shall perform the following duties or be responsible for the following functions:

1. The Macon County Transportation Advisory Board (TAB) is the advisory committee for Macon County Transit and
makes recommendations to the Macon County Beard of Commissioners on service changes and adopting
pragram documents.

2. The TAB is a locally formed advisory group based on NCDOT/PTD guidelines and requirements.

3. The TAB must inciude representatives from the elderly, minority, Limited English Proficiency (LEP), disabled
and/or low income populations in the service area.

4. The TAB meets, at a minimum, one time per quarter (Third Wednesday of the Third Month of the Quarter —
March, June, September, December)

5. Avote by the majority of board members present at any meeting shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of
business during regular or special called meetings of the board




o~

10.

1.
12.

13.

14.

Serve as a liaison between the residents of Macon County and the county government concerning transportation
issues.

Discuss and make recommendations on unmet needs in the services area.

Review and make recommendations on service design, scheduling and billing rates and fares and help to resolve
complaints when requested by the Transit Director.

Monitor compliance with federal regulations and the status of any deficiencies noted in any official federal, state
or local review or report.

Recommend policy and make recommendations to the Transit Director and the Macon County Board of
Commissioners on the transportation needs of Macon County citizens, particularly with respect to a coordinated
and cost-effective approach to the delivery of transporiation services to area human service agencies and the
general public.

Work to stimulate and promote needed transportation services and programs for Macen County residents.
Assist public, private non-profit, private, and voluntary agencies in providing transportation services to their
clients.

Assist in the development and update of the Community Transportation Services Plan (CTSP) and the local
Human Services and Public Transportation Coordinated Plan.

Perform other functions as may be requested by the Macon County Board of Commissioners.

The Macon County Board of Commissioners shall perform the following duties or be responsible for the following
functions:

1.

o ;M

The Macon County Board of Commissioners (BOC) is the governing board for Macon County Transit and makes
the final decisions on adopting policies and program documents.

The BOC is comprised of five elected members.

The BOC meets one time per month (second Tuesday of the Month)

Certain departmental plans/policies/documents are required to be adopted by the Board of Commissioners.
Plan/policies/documents are typically sent to the County Attorney for review and comment,

The Transit Director makes any necessary changes based on County Affomey’s opinion and requests to be
placed on the agenda for the next BOC meeting.

The Transit Director (or designee) brings the plan/policy/document before the Board of Commissicners at a
regufar meeting. -

The BOC caonsiders the request from the Transit Director and votes to either approve or deny the request.

A Resolution granting permission for MCT to apply and receive the annual CTP funds must be passed by the
BCC.

Macon County Transportation Advisory 7 <
Board i U 16
Macon County Board of Commissioners O [ 5




2.4 TiTLE VI COORDINATOR

The individual below has been designated as the Title VI Coordinater for Macon County Transit, and is empowered with
sufficient authority and responsibility to implement the Title VI Nondiscrimination Program:

Kim Angel

Transit Director

36 Pannell Lane
Franklin, NC 28734
828-349-2222
kangel@maconnc.arg

Key responsibilities of the Coordinator include:;

s Maintaining knowledge of Title VI and related requirements.
« Aftending civil rights training when offered by NCDQT or any other regulatory agency.
e Administering the Title VI Nondiscrimination Program and coordinating implementation of this Plan.

» Making sure internal staff and officials are familiarized and complying with their Title VI nondiscrimination obligations.

 Disseminating Title VI information internally and to the general public, including in languages other than English.
» Presenting Tile VI-related information to decision-making bodies for input and approval.

* Ensuring Title VI-related posters are prominently and publicly displayed.

» Developing a process to collect data related to race, national origin, sex, age, and disability to ensure minority, fow-
income, and other underserved groups are included and not discriminated against.

o Ensuring that non-elected boards and committees reflect the service area and minorities are represented.

e Implementing procedures for prompt processing (receiving, logging, investigating and/or forwarding) of discrimination
complaints.

» Coordinating with, and providing information to, NCDOT and other regulatory agencies during compliance reviews or
complaint investigations.

e Promptly resolving areas of deficiency to ensure compliance with Title VI nondiscrimination requirements.
2.5 CHANGE OF TITLE VI COORDINATOR

If Title VI Coardinator or Transit Director changes, this document and all other documents that name the Coordinator, will
immediately be updated, and an updated policy statement and assurance will be signed by the new Transit Director.

2.6 ORGANIZATIONAL CHART
An organizational chart showing the Title VI Coordinator’s place within the organization is located in Appendix B.

27 BUB-RECIPIENTS

Macon County Transit does not have pass through funds to any other organizations and, therefore, does not have any
sub-recipients.




3.0  TITLE VI NONDISCRIMINATION POLICY STATEMENT

It is the policy of Macon County Transit, as a federal-aid recipient, to ensure that no person shall, on the
ground of race, color, national origin, sex, creed (religion), age or disability, be excluded from participation
in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any of our programs and
activities, as provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, and
all other related nondiscrimination laws and requirements.

Derek C. Roland, Macon County Manager

Date

Title VI and Related Authorities

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.8.C. Section 2000d) provides that, “No person in the United States shall,
on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving federal financial assistance.” The 1987 Civil Rights
Restoration Act (P.L. 100-259) clarified and restored the original intent of Title VI by expanding the definition of
“orograms and activities” to include all programs and activities of federal-aid recipients (such as, Macon County
Transif), sub-recipients, and contractors, whether such pragrams and activities are federally-assisted or not.

Refated nondiscrimination authorities include, but are not limited to: U.8. DOT regulation, 49 CFR part 21,
"Nondiscrimination in Federally-assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the
Civil Rights Act”; 49 U.S.C. 5332, "Nondiscrimination (Public Transportation)”; FTA Circular 4702.1B - Title VI
Requirements and Guidelines for Federal Transit Administration Recipients; DOT Order 5610.2a, "Actions to Address
Environmental Justice in Minority Populations and Low-Income Populations”; FTA C 4703.1 - Environmental Justice
Policy Guidance For Federal Transit Administration Recipients; Policy Guidance Concerning (DOT) Recipient's
Responsibilities to Limited English Proficient (LEP) Persons, 74 FR 74087; The Americans with Disabilties Act of
1990, as amended, P.L. 101-336; Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 790; Age Discrimination
Act of 1975, as amended 42 U.S.C. 6101; Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, 20 U.S.C. 1681, Uniform
Refocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, 42 U.S.C. 4601; Section 508 of the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. 794d.

10




4.0

v

Implementation

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION

Macon County Transit operates its programs and services without regard to race, color, national origin, sex,
Creed (Religion), age, and disability in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act and relafed statutes.
Any person who believes she or he has been aggrieved by any uniawful discriminatory practice may file a
complaint with Macon County Transit.

For more information on Macon County Transit's civil rights program, and the procedures to file a complaint,
contact 828-349-2222, (TTY 800-735-2962 or 711); via the internet at www.macontransit.org, or visit our
administrative office at 36 Pannell Ln, Franklin, NC 28734.

If information is needed in another language, contact 828-349-2222 and ask for an interpreter.

North Carolina Department of Transportation, Office of Civil Rights, External Civil Rights, 1511 Mail Service
Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1511; 919-508-1830 or toll free 800-522-0453.

A complainant may file a complaint directly with the Federal Transit Administration by filing a complaint with the
Office of Civil Rights, Attention: Title VI Program Coordinator, East Building, 5th Floor-TCR,1200 New Jersey
Ave., SE, Washington, DC 20590.

11




5.0 PROCEDURES TO ENSURE NONDISCRIMINATORY ADMINISTRATION OF PROGRAMS AND SERVICES

We are committed to the nondiscriminatory administration of our programs and services. As with the implementation of our
programs in general, organization-wide compliance is required. Thus, employees and staff will periodically be reminded of
our Title VI nondiscrimination obligations through staif training and use of the Annual Education and Acknowledgment
Form beiow. The Title VI Coordinator will periodically assess pregram operations to ensure that this policy is being
fallowed. A single copy of the form is located in Appendix D

Annual Education and Acknowledgement Form

Title VI Nondiscrimination Policy
(Title VI and related nondiscrimination authorities)

No person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or
activity of a Federal-aid recipient.

All employees and representatives of Macon County Transit are expected to consider, respect, and
observe this policy in their daily work and duties. If any person approaches you with a civil rights-
related question or complaint, please direct him or her to Transit Director, at 36 Pannell Lane,
Franklin, NC 28734 PH. 828-349-2222,

Tn all dealings with the public, use courtesy titles (e.g., M., Mrs., Miss, Dr.) to address or refer to them
without regard to their race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability.

Acknowledgement of Receipt of Title VI Program

I hereby acknowledge receipt of Macon County Transit’s Title VI Program and other
nondiscrimination guidelines. [ have read the Title VI Program and I am committed to ensuring that no
person is excluded from participation in or denied the benefits of Macon County Transit’s programs,
policies, services and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, as
provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related nondiscrimination statutes.

Signature Date

12




6.0 CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

Macon County Transit ensures all contractors will fulfill their contracts in a nondiscriminatory manner. While contractors are
not required to prepare a Title VI Program, they must comply with the nondiscrimination requirements of the organization
to which they are contracted. Macon County Transit and its contractors will not discriminate in the selection and retention
of contractors (at any level) or discriminate in employment practices in connection with any of our projects.

6.1 CONTRACT LANGUAGE

During the performance of this contract, the contractor, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest (hereinafter referred to as the

“contractor”) agrees as follows:

(1) Compliance with Regulations: The contractor shall
comply with the Regulation relative to nondiscrimination in
Federally-assisted programs of the Depariment of
Transportation (hereinafter, "DOT") Title 49, Code of Federal
Regulations, Part 21, as they may be amended from time to
time, (hereinafter referred fo as the Regulations), which are
herein incorporated by reference and made a part of this
confract.

{2) Nondiscrimination: The contractor, with regard fo the
waork performed by it during the contract, shall not discriminate
on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, creed , age,
or digability in the selection and retention of subcontractors,
including procurements of materials and leases of equipment.
The contractor shall not participate either directly or indirectly
in the discrimination prohibited by section 21.5 of the
Regutations, including employment practices when the
contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the
Regulations.

{(3) Solicitations for Subcontractors, including
Procurements of Materials and Equipment: In all
solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made
by the contractor for work to be performed under a
subcontract, including procurements of materials or leases of
equipment, each potential subcentractor or supplier shall be
notified by the contractor of the contractor's obligations under
this contract and the Regulations relative to nondiscrimination
on the grounds of race, colar, or national origin.

(4) Information and Reports: The contractor shall
provide all information and reports required by the Regulations
or directives issued pursuant thereto, and shall permit access
to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information,
and its facilities as may be determined by the Macon County
Transit or the North Carolina Department of Transportation
(NCDQT), the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and/or
Federal Transit Adminisiration (FTA) to be pertinent to
ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and
instructions. Where any information required of a contractor is
in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to
furnish this information the contractor shall so certify to Macon
County Transit, or the NCDOT, FHWA andior FTA as
appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to
obtain the information.

(5) Sanctions for Noncompliance: In the event of the
confractor's  nencompliance  with  the  nondiscrimination

provisions of this contract, Macon County Transit shall impose
such contract sanctions as it or the NCDOT, FHWA and/or
FTA may determine to be appropriate, including, but not
limited to:

{a) withholding of payments to the contractor under the
conftract until the contractor complies, andfor

(b) cancellation, termination or suspension of the contract,
in whole or in part.

(8) Incorporation of Provisions: The contractor shall
include the provigions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in every
subcentract, including procurements of materials and leases
of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives
issued pursuant thereto. The contractor shall take such action
with respect to any subcontract or pracurement as Macon
County Transit or the NCDOT, FHWA andfor FTA may direct
as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanciions
for noncompliance: Provided, however, that, in the event a
coniractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation
with a subconiractor or supplier as a result of such direction,
the contractor may request Macon County Transit to enter into
such litigation to protect the interests of the Macon County
Transit, and, in addition, the contractor may request the United
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the
United States.

13




*The Confractor has read and is familiar with the terms above:
.Contractor's Initials

Date

14




6.2 NONDISCRIMINATION NOTICE TO PROSPECTIVE BIDDERS

The Macon County Transit, in accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related
nondiscrimination authorities, and Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations, Parts 21 and 26, hereby notifies
all bidders that it will affirmatively insure that in any contact entered into pursuant to this advertisement,
minority and women business enterprises will be afforded full opportunity to submit bids in respense to this
invitation and will not be discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, national origin, or sex, age,
creed, or disability in consideration for an award.

15




7.0 EXTERNAL DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

These discrimination complaint procedures outline the process used by Macon County Transit (MCT) to
process complaints of alleged discrimination filed under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related
nondiscrimination laws that are applicable to MCT programs, services, and activities. Complaints will be

* investigated by the appropriate authority. Upon completion of an investigation, the complainant will be
informed of all avenues of appeal. Every effort wili be made to obtain early resolution of complaints at the
lowest level possible by informal means.

FILING OF COMPLAINTS

1. Applicability — These procedures apply to the beneficiaries of our programs, activities, and services,
such as the members of the public and any consultants/contractors we hire.

2. Eligibility — Any person or class of persons who believes that he/she has been subjected to
discrimination or retaliation prohibited by any of the Civil Rights authorities based upon race, color,
sex, age, national origin, creed (religion) or disability, may file a written complaint. The law prohibits
intimidation or retaliation of any sort. The complaint may be filed by the affected individual or a
representative, and must be in writing.

3. Time Limits and Filing Options — A complaint must be filed no later than 180 calendar days after
the following:

» The date of the alleged act of discrimination; or
» The date when the person(s) became aware of the alleged discrimination; or

» Where there has been a continuing course of conduct, the date on which that conduct was
discontinued or the latest instance of the conduct.

Complaints may be submitted to the following entities:

> Macon County Transit, ATTN: Kim Angel, Transit Director, 36 Pannell Ln, Franklin, NC 28734
828-349-2222

> North Carolina Department of Transportation, Office of Civil Rights, External Civil Rights
Secticn, 1511 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, NC 27699-1511; 919-508-1830 or toll free 800-522-
0453

» US Department of Transportation, Departmental Office of Civil Rights, External Civil Rights
Programs Division, 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE, Washington, DC 20590; 202-366-4070

Federal Transit Administration, Office of Civil Rights, ATTN: Title VI Program Coordinator, East
Bidg. 5" Floor — TCR, 1200 New Jersey Avenue, SE, Washington, DC 20590
> US Department of Justice, Special Litigation Section, Civil Rights Division, 250 Pennsylvania
Avenue, NW, Washington, DC 20530, 202-514-6255 or toll free 877-218-5228

4. Format for Complaints — Complaints shall be in writing and signed by the complainant(s) or a
representative and include the complainant’'s name, address, and telephone number. Complaints
received by fax or e-mail will be acknowledged and processed. Allegations received by telephane or
in person will be reduced to writing, may be recorded and will be provided to the complainant for
confirmation or revision before processing. Complaints will be accepted in other languages, including
Braille.

5. Discrimination Complaint Form — The Discrimination Camplaint Form is consistent with the FTA
Certifications & Assurances, “Nondiscrimination Assurance.”

6. Complaint Basis — Allegaticns must be based on issues involving race, color, national origin, sex,
age, creed (religion} or disability. The term “basis” refers to the complainant's membership in a
protected group category.

16




Protected Definifion Examples Applicable Statutes and
Categories . Regulations
FTA
Race An individual belonging to one of the accepted Black/African American, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
racial groups; or the perception, based usually en | HispaniciLatino, Asian, 1964;
physical characteristics that a person is a member | American Indian/Alaska 49 CFR Part 21;
of a racial group Native, Native 49 U.S.C. 5332(b};
Hawaiian/Pacific lslander, FTA Circular 4702.18
White
Color Color of skin, including shade of skin within a Black, White, brown, yellow,
racial group efc.
National Place of birth. Citizenship is not a factor. Mexican, Cuban, Japanese,
Origin Discrimination based on language or a person’s Vietnamese, Chinese
accent is also covered.
Sex Gender Women and Men 49 U.8.C. 5332(b); Title [X of the
Education Amendments of 1972
Age Persons of any age 21 year old person Age Discrimination Act of 1975
Disability Physical or mental impairment, permanent or Biind, alcoholic, para- Section 504 of the Rehabilitation
temporary, or perceived. ’ amputee, epileptic, diabetic, | Act of 1973; Americans with
arthritic Disabilities Act of 1990
Creed Religion. Muslim, Christian, Hindu, 49 1J.8.C. 5332(b)

Atheist

Complaint Processing

1. When a complaint is received, an Acknowledgment Letter and a Complainant Consent/Release Form
will be mailed fo the complainant within ten {10) business days by registered mail.

2. We will consult with the NCDOT Title VI Program to determine the acceptability and jurisdiction of all
compiaints received. (Note: if NCDOT will investigate, the Title Vi Program will be responsible for the
remainder of this process. We will record the transfer of responsibility in our complaints log).

3. Additional information will be requested if the complaint is incompiete. The complainant will be
provided 15 business days to submit any requested information and the signed Consent Release
form. Failure to do so may be considered good cause for a determination of no investigative merit.

4. Upon receipt of the requested information and determinaticn of jurisdiction, we will notify the
complainant and respondent of whether the complaint has sufficient merit to warrant investigation.

5. If the complaint is investigated, the notification shall state the grounds of our jurisdiction, while
informing the parties that their full cooperation will be required in gathering additional information and
assisting the investigator.

6. If the complaint does not warrant investigation, the notification to the complainant shall specifically
state the reason for the decision. .

Complaint Log

1. When a complaint is received, the complaint wilt be entered into the Discrimination Complaints Log
with other pertinent information, and assigned a Case Number. (Note: All complaints must be

logged).

2. The complaints log wili be submitted to the NCDOT'’s Civil Rights office during Title VI compliance
reviews. {Note: NCDOT may also be request the complaints log during pre-grant approval
processes).

3. The Log Year(s) since the last submittal will be entered (e.g., 2015-2018, 2017-2018, FFY 2018, or
2018) and the complaints log will be signed before submitting the log to NCDOT.

4. When reporting no complaints, check the No Complaints or Lawsuits box and sign the log.

17




Macon County Transit
DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT FORM

Any person who believes that heishe has been subjected to discrimination based upon race, color, creed {refigion), sex, ags, national
origin, or disability may file a written complaint with Macon County Transit, within 180 days after the discrimination occurred.

Last Name: First Name: [ Male
O Female

Mailing Address: City State Zip

Home Telephone: Work Telephone: E-mail Address

Identify the Category of Discrimination:
[0 RACE [J COLCR [0 NATIONAL ORIGIN [ AGE
[J CREED (RELIGION) ] DISABILITY O sex

*NOTE: Title i bases are race, color, national origin. All other bases are found in the “Nondiscriminaftion Assurance” of the FTA Certifications & Assurances.

Identify the Race of the Complainant

[ Black ] White [ Hispanic [3 Asian American
1 American Indian [ Alaskan Native [ Pacific Islander [ Other

Date and place of alleged discriminatory action(s). Please include earliest date of discrimination and most recent date of discrimination.

Names of individuals responsible for the discriminatory action(s):

How were you discriminated against? Describe the nature of the action, decision, or conditions of the alleged discrimination. Explain as
clearly as possible what happened and why you believe your protected status (basis) was a factor in the discrimination. Include how other
persons were treated differently from you. (Attach additional page(s), if necessary).

The law prohibits intimidation or retaliation against anyone because he/she has either taken action, er participated in acticn, to secure
rights protected by these laws. If you feel that you have been retaliated against, separate from the discrimination alleged above, piease
explain the circumstances below. Explain what action you took which you believe was the cause for the alleged retaliation.

Names of persons (witnesses, fellow employses, supervisors, or others) whom we may contact for additional information to support or
clarify your complaint: (Attached additional page(s), if necessary).

Name Address TJelephone

18




DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT FORM

Have you filed, or intend to file, a complaint regarding the matter raised with any of the following? If yes, please provide the filing dates. Check
all that apply. -

[ NC Department of Transportation
[ Federal Transit Administration

[1 US Depariment of Transportation
] Federal or State Court
] Other

Have you discussed the complaint with any Macon County Transit representative? If yes, provide the name, position, and date of discussion.

Please provide any additional information that you believe would assist with an investigation.

Briefly explain what remedy, or action, are you seeking for the alleged discrimination.

**WE CANNOT ACCEPT AN UNSIGNED COMPLAINT. PLEASE SIGN AND DATE THE COMPLAINT FORM BELOW.

COMPLAINANT'S SIGNATURE DATE

MAIL COMPLAINT FORM 7O:
Macon County Transit
36 Pannell Lane
Franklin, NC 28734
Attn: Kim Angel

(828) 349-2222

19




0¢

ajeq

[BIDIIJO PIZUOYINY JO S[IL PuB BLeN Juld

[eI1Q PaZLIoYINY IO JO JOJRUIPIOOD (A L J0 Binjeubls

'LOGON 0} uoissigns WeiBoud 1A SfiLL snotaid ay) 3ouIs Jisues | Aunog Uooel Jsulele Jo uym pajl Uaaq aaey
‘UoljeLiWwLosp BuiBs|ie synsmej Jo sureiduios U Jo ‘uoleuluosip Buibs|ie sinsme| Jo sjulejduwod paquasap aroge oy} ‘sBpaimouy Aul o 188q 8L ) 13 Auao |

[X] sunsme Jo sjurejdwo) oN

g3.131dW0o9D
"DILSIANI gangoay | a3 JWVYN ¥3aN3o AWYN "ON
NOILISOdSIa alva N3NVL1 NOILOY 3lva alva SISvg | INIANOJSIY | /30vH | INVNIVIdWOD | 3SVD
(sheay, 6o

9071 SINIVIdWOD NOILYNININOSIT




INVESTIGATIVE GUIDANCE

A. Scope of Investigation — An investigation should be confined to the issues and facts relevant to the allegations

in the complaint, unless evidence shows the need to extend the issues.

Developing an Investigative Plan — It is recommended that the investigator prepares an Investigative Plan (IP)
to define the issues and lay out the blueprint to complete the investigation. The IP should follow the outline below:

Complainani(s) Name and Address {Attorney name and address if applicable)
Respondent(s) Name and Address {Attorney for the Respondent{s) name and address)
Applicable Law(s)
Basisf{es)
Allegafion(s)/Issue(s)
Background
Name of Persons to be interviewed
a. Questions for the complainant(s)
b.  Questions for the respondent(s)
¢.  Questions for withess(es)
8. Evidence to be obtained during the investigation
a. Issue — Complainant allege that there are only six African American contractors participating in the
highway construction industry in the State and their contract awards are very small.
i. Documents needed: documents which show all DBE firms which currently have contracts and
must include the following 1) name and race of DBE firm; 2) Date of initial certification into the
DBE program; 3) type of business; 4) contracts awarded anytime during the period to the
present; 5) dollar value of contract.

N O RN

Request for information — The investigator should gather data and information pertinent to the issues raised in
the complaint.

Interviews — Interviews should be conducted with the complainant, respandent, and appropriate witnesses
during the investigative process. Interviews are conducted to gain a better understanding of the situation outlined
in the complaint of discrimination. The main objective during the interview is to obtain information that will either
support or refute the allegations.

Developing an Investigative Report — The investigator should prepare an investigative report setting forth all

relevant facts obtained during the investigation. The report should include a finding for each issue. A sample
investigative report is provided below.

21




Macon County Transit Investigative Report Outline
L COMPLAINANT(S) NAME (or attorney for the complainant(s) — name and address if applicable

IL

II. APPLICABLE LAW/REGULATION

COMPLAINT BASIS/(ES)

VL. BACKGROUND

VIL. INVESTIGATIVE PROCEDURE

VIIL

ISSUES / FINDINGS OF FACT

IX, CONCLUSION

X. RECOMMENDED ACTIONS

(Investigative Report) APPENDIX

22




8.0 SERVICE AREA POPULATION CHARACTERISTICS

To ensure that Title V! reporting requirements are met, Macon County Transit will collect and maintain population data
on potential and actual beneficiaries of our programs and services. This section is intended as a compitation of
relevant population characteristics from our overall service area. This data will provide context to the Title VI
Nondiscrimination Program and be used to ensure nandiscrimination and improve public outreach initiatives and
delivery of ongoing programs.

8.1 RACE AND ETHNICITY

The following table was completed using data from Census Table QT-P3, Race and Hispanic or Latino Origin;
2010:

Total Population 33,922 100
White 31,811 93.8
Black or African American 447 1.3
American Indian or Alagka Native 165 5
Asian 208 B
Native Hawaiian and Other Pacific |slander 4 0
Same other Race 905 27

Two or More Races 382 27

HISPANIC OR LATINO (of any race)

Mexican 1,814 53

Puerto Rican 70 2

Cuban 78 2

Other Hispanic or Latino 268 8
8.2 AGE & SEX

The following table was completed using data from Census Table QT-P1, Age Groups and Sex: 2010:

Total Population 33,922 16,495 17,427 100%
Under 5 years 1,750 902 848 5.0
510 18 years 5,551 2,872 2,679 16.4
19 to 64 years 18,552 9,105 9,447 54.80
65 years and over 8,069 3,616 4,453 23.80
Median Age 478 45.6 497 -

23




8.3 DisaBLITY

The following table was completed using data from Census Table $1810, Disability Characteristics:

Total civilian noninstitutionalized population 33,578 5,981 +/-404 . +/-1.2
Population under 5 years 1,649 +-144 58 +-84 3.5% +-5.1
Population 5 to 17 years 4714 +-147 501 +-188 10.6% +-4.0
Population 18 to 64 years 1,8847 +-94 2,488 +/-287 13.2% +-1.5
Population 65 years and over 8,368 +-68 2934 +-210 35.1% +-2.5

SEX
Male 16,436 H-18 3,048 +/-306 18.5% +-1.8
Female 17,142 +-199 2,933 +-297 17.1% +-1.7

RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO

ORIGIN
White 3,368 +-160 5,859 +-411 17.8% +-1.2
Black or African American 138 +{-102 76 +-85 55.1% +-42.5
American Indian and Alaska Native 207 +-155 58 +-46 28.0% +-26.8
Asian 218 +/-39 0 +-26 0.0% +-14.8

lsgﬁg\ﬁﬁ‘merioan and Other Pacific 0 +-26 0 +-98 i .
Some other Race 1,074 +-610 18 +/-08 21.3% +-16.4
Two or more races 573 +-139 122 +/-88 21.3% +-16.4
Hispanic or Latine 2,213 +-26 80 +-54 36% +-2.4

24




8.4 POVERTY

The following table was completed using data from Census Table $1701, Poverly Status in the Past 12 Months:

Population for whom poverty status is

determined 33,443 +/-109 6,936 +/-715 20.7% +/-2.1
AGE
Under 18 6,264 +/-92 1,911 +-373 30.5% +-5.9
18 to 64 18,811 +-87 4,261 +-450 22.7% +-2.4
65 years and over 8,368 +-88 764 +-182 9.1% +-2.2
SEX
Male 16,305 +/-206 3,305 +-399 20.3% +-2.4
Female 17,138 +-199 3,63 +/-466 21.2% +-26
RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ORIGIN
White 31,267 +-638 8,029 +-730 19.3% +-2.2
Black or African American 106 +-95 14 +/-17 13.2% +/-23.6
American Indian and Ataska Native 207 +/-155 28 +-37 13.5% +-20.1
Asian 218 +-39 18 +-18 8.3% +-8.2
Native American and Other Pacific Istander 0 +/-26 0 +-26 - b
Some other Race 1,073 +/-610 663 +-518 61.8% +-28.4
Two or more races 572 +-139 184 +-175 32.2% +/-28.3
Hispanic or Latino 2211 +-6 1,063 +/-326 48.1% +-14.8
RACE AND HISPANIC OR LATINO ORIGIN
Allindividuals below:
50 percent of poverly level 3,063 +/-646 X X X X
125 percent of poverty level 9,176 +/-836 X X X X
150 percent of poverty level 11,238 +/-829 X X X X
185 percent of poverty level 13,792 +1-850 X X X X
209 percent of poverty level 14,936 +/-840 X X X X

25




8.5 HOUSEHOLD INCOME

The following table was completed using data from Census Table S1 901, Income in the Past 12 Months (In 2013
Inflation-Adjusted Dollars):

Total \
Less than $10,000 10.2% +-1.6
$10,000 to $14,899 9.1% +-1.6
$15,000 to $24,999 12.9% +-2.0
$25,000 to $34,999 14.0% +-2.1
$35,000 to $49,999 15.3% +-2.1
$50,000 to $74,999 18.4% +-2.0
$75,000 to $99,999 5.6% +-1.1
$100,000 to $149,999 _ 6.9% +-1.8
$150,000 to $199,999 1.4% +-0.5
$200,000 or more 2.3% +-0.7

Median income (dollars) 38,491 +-1827

Mean income {dollars) 53124 +-3067

8.6 LmITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY POPULATIONS

See table in Factor #1 of Section 10.5 of this document.

8.7 POPULATION LOCATIONS

Federal-aid recipients are required to know the characteristics and locations of populations they serve, particularly by
racefethnicity, poverty and limited English proﬂmency This |nformat|on will be commumcated r]arratlvely or through
maps thatoverlay boundaries and de f ABASBE minorty

iiacon:
9.0 TITLE VI EQUITY ANALYSES (AND ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE ASSESSMENTS)

As required under FTA C 4702.18 and 4703.1, Title VI equity and environmental justice (EJ) analyses will be
conducted whenever we plan to construct (or modify) a facility, such as a vehicle storage facility, maintenance facility,
operation center, etc., or when there will be a change in fares. These studies will be conducted to see if the change
could result in either a disparate impact based on race, color or national origin (Title VI) or a disproportionately high
and adverse impact to minority and/or low-income populations {EJ). Thus, they will look at various alternatives before
selecting a site for the facitity. Project-specific demographic data will be collected on potentially affected communities
and their involvement in associated decision-making activities will be documented. Specific studies will be made
available to oversight agencies during compliance reviews or to evidence our due diligence should a complaint be
filed in relation to the location and effect of a proposed facility or fare increases. Project-related equity and EJ studies
will remain on file indefinitely.

26




10.0 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

Effective public involvement is a key element in addressing Title V1in decision-making. Recipients engaged in planning
and other decision-making activities must have a documented public participation process that provides adequate nofice of
public participation activities, and early and confinuous opportunities for public review and comment at key decision points.
Underlying these efforts is our commitment to determining the most effective outreach metheds for a given project or
popuiation.

10.1 Public Meetings:

This Public Participation Plan describes how Macon County Transit will disseminate vital agency information and engage
the public by seeking out and considering the needs and input of interested parties and those traditionally underserved by
existing fransportation systems, such as minority and limited English proficient persans, who may face challenges
accessing programs and other services. General public involvement practices will include:

»  Scheduling meetings at times and locations that are convenient and accessible for minority and LEP communities.
« Employing different meeting sizes and formats.

o Coordinating with community- and faith-based organizations, educational institutions, and other entities to implement
public engagement strategies that reach out specifically to members of affected minority and/or LEP communities.

¢  Providing opportunities for public participation through means other than written communication, such as personal
interviews or use of audio or video recording devices to capiure oral comments.

e Considering radio, television, or newspaper ads on stations and in publications that serve LEP populations. Outreach
to LEP persons could also include audio programming available on podcasts.

10.2 Notices to the Public

10.3 Public Involvement Process
The main objectives are to:

1. Comply with the public involvement and environmental justice requirements of the Federal and State regulations,
and provide specific opportunities for local citizens and citizen-based organizations to discuss their views and
provide input on the subject areas addressed in plans, projects or policies of MCT.

2. Inform and educate citizens and other interested parties about ongoing MCT planning activities, and their
potential role in those activifies.

3. Work with other local and state organizations that have similar goals and requirements.

4. Study cther transit organizations that have been successful in Public Participation Efforts.

Experience has shown difficulty in reaching a large span of the population and keeping them involved. Federal and State
regulations require us to provide the public with information and to reach out and include traditionally under-served
populations. This document has been prepared to serve that purpose.

104 Qutreach Tools

A. General Public Relations
General public relations may be defined as any action that might reach any citizen, whether or not that citizen has
specific interest or knowledge regarding transportation planning. This group of techniques includes the followings:
announcements targeted at newspapers and radio; posters or pamphlets displayed in public places; and signs
posted near future or current transportation project sites. Meetings or hearings that are held in public places and
covered by the media can act as general public relations.

27




These techniques are ways to keep the general public aware of the presence of the planning organization and
the status of specific projects so that they may develop an interest and choose to become better informed or
actively involved.

B. Events
There are a broad variety of ways to educate and engage the public. In general, the eariier public involvement is
sought, the better. It is also a better use of citizens’ free time to participate in a process that will determine the
direction of a project that may take years to complete. Citizens may get frustrated when they are invited to join
late in the process - when the values and goais have already been decided and the details have been hammered
out. The following tools are arranged from most participatory o least.

Special Events are held to bring attention to a specific activity or issue. Special events may take the form of a fair
or speciat educational lecture with civic groups or other public entities. Special events are a way to expose a
large number of people fo a project or program. Macon County Transit (MCT) will participate in local festivals,
fairs and community events whenever possible to distribute brochures, and interact with the public and market
MCT's services whenever possible.

Surveys are an efficient method of gathering input from a large number of people af an early stage of the
planning process. This is particularly useful when trying to understand the goals and aspirations of a community
before attempting to address any specific problems. As an outreach tool, surveys are a gocd way to identify
citizens who may want to become further involved. Surveys may be administered in person or on the phone or
distributed via mail, on the Internet, or at public places. A labor intensive activity, implementation of surveys might
be aided by volunteers and student interns As part of required success planning, NCDOT-PTD is requiring all-
rural systems to collect a minimum of 100 surveys per quarter beginning in Fiscal Year 2017, The main purpose
of these surveys is to obtain a Net Promoter Score (NPS} to determine if customers would be willing fo use the
service again (customer satisfaction). Additional questions will be added to the service to determine needs and
other information from customers in order to improve service availability, safety, inclusion of all populations, and
route structure.

Public Hearings are usually held when an agency has completed a plan and needs to present it for public review
before moving forward with the plan. MCT holds public hearings as part of their various grant applications
process. Notices will be published in the local newspaper and posted at local human service agencies and in all
MCT vehicles in order to inform the public of these hearings. As with all of these tools, care must be taken to
ensure that the public is made fully aware of the event well in advance, and that the goals and values of the plan
are clearly stated. Anyone wishing to provide written comments at these public hearings may do so by
completing a Public Comments form and submitting it at the Macon County Board of Commissioners meeting.
Public Comments forms are available at each Public Hearing or may be obtained by contacting the Macon
County Transit office.

Community Forum Meetings are held to discuss programs and activities within communities, and the public is
engaged to discuss their needs in general. MCT will participate in community forums whenever possible to
promote cooperation with other agencies in the County and the Region to help identify any unmet transportation
needs in Macon County, and to distribute informaticn about transportation services. These community forums
may be at local community centers, fire stations, civic organizations, or in coordination with other area agencies.

C. Direct Marketing and Education
Direct marketing and education is meant to reach out and provide specific information to specific parties. For
example, landowners or leaders of an ethnic community may be sought out and personally invited to come to a
meeting. Similarly, lower income groups may be specifically targeted to be educated about their rights, or children
or families may be targeted fo begin a discussion on a specific program. Direct marketing and education can take
place through direct mass mailings, radio, press advertising, or through meetings with specific groups of people
such as local clubs, homeless people, property owners, or housing authorities. It can also be through making
direct phone calls or meeting with key people who desire to participate in a given process. This is the most labor

28




intensive and potentially most fruitful way fo create a diverse and active public participation process. Macon
County Transit utilizes brochures and posters by placing them in thrift stores, local Chamber of Commerce,
Human Service Agencies, Apartment Complexes, Community College, Businesses, Health Dept., Senior Center
and other locations. MCT also promotes its services through alternative advertising such as talk radio programs,
short radio spots, hillboards, and newspaper ads.

10.5 LIMITED ENGLISH PROFICIENCY

Limited English Proficient (LEP) persons refers to persons for whom English is not their primary language who have a
limited ability to read, write, speak, or understand English. It includes people who reported to the U.S. Census that they
speak English less than very well, not well, or not at all.

In an effort to comply with DOT’s LEP policy guidance and Executive Order 13168, this section of our public participation
plan outlines the steps we will take to ensure meaningful access to all benefits, services, information, and other important
postions of our programs and activities by individuals who are limited-English proficient. Accordingly, a four factor analysis
was conducted to defermine the specific language services appropriate to provide, and to whom, to inform language
assistance planning and determine if our communication with LEP persons is effective.

Four Factor Analysis

This Four Factor Analysis is an individualized assessment that balances the following four factors:
{1) The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible to be served or likely to be encountered by a program, activity,
or service of the recipient or grantee;
(2) The frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with the program,
3) The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provided by the recipient to people’s lives; and
(4) The resources available to the recipient and costs.

Factor #1: The number or proportion of LEP persons eligible fo be served or likely to be encountered by the
program, activity, or service of the recipient.

LANGUAGE SPOKEN AT HOME Estimate Margin of Error Percent_ of Margin of Error
Population
Total {population 5 years and over) 32,190 +-144 ~100% {X)
Spanish or Spanish Crecle: 1,720 +-297 05% +- %
o nn R e T 1
Speak English less than "very well" 683 224 02% +-%
Speak English "very well" +-64 %
- : o - T 1 : 55 ':",.1‘. .:7:.
Tagaiog ] +-110 %
Speak English less than "very well +- %

Based on Census estimates, factoring in margins of errar, there are ne individual LEP language groups within Macan
County that meet the safe harbor threshold of 5% or 1,000, whichever is less, far required transiation (written) of vitai

29




documents. However, in accordance with the USDOT LEP Guidance, when circumstances warrant, MCT will provide
written notice in the primary language of the specific LEP language group of the right to receive competent oral
interpretation of written materials, free of cost. MCT will aiso translate pertinent material if it determines that is the best way
to communicate with an LEP person or community.

Factor #2: The frequency with which LEP individuals come in contact with the program.

MCT offers deviated fixed routes, paratransit service, and a demand response service between 6:00 am until 5:00 pm,
Monday through Friday, except holidays. Therefore, individuals primarily come inte contact with MCT when they place a
call for transportation assistance. Based on the infrequency of LEP calls received, we estimate that LEP persons come into
contact with MCT approximately one (1} time per year. When LEP persons call for fransportation services MCT will make
every effort to provide language assistance in order to respond to their request. By using a translator phone service MCT
should be able to adequately provide this language assistance. The deviated fixed service includes 8 fixed bus stops along
the route. MCT will conduct an assessment of this route to determine if LEP persons use it, and if they do, how often.

Factor #3: The nature and importance of the program, activity, or service provided by the recipient to people’s
fives.

MCT's services are available to all individuals of Macon County, including LEP persons. Transportation services are
important to Macon County in order fo allow elderl mdnnduals to age in place, rather than being placed in a nursing or
care facility. Bthercustomers ot theen i THE-SEIEE to get to employment sites, shopping centers,
human service agencies, or any other general transporta ion they may need. Transportation disadvantaged populations
rely heavily on the service to get to life sustaining services such as dialysis or quality of life destinations such as the library
or shopping centers.

In order to determine the importance of MCT's services to the community, questions will be added to the surveys required
by NCDOT. Information from these surveys will be used to determine how the community perceives MCT and is
importance to the economy and life in a rural area. One-on-one surveys have been conducted by the Mobility Coordinator
to determine if the deviated fixed service provided by MCT is fuffiling the transportation needs of riders on that service,
and to determine rider's knowledge of other MCT services, e.g., demand response and subscription. MCT will make sure
that not only its customers are aware of the survey and encouraged to complete it, but also community-based, faith-based
organizations and businesses. Paper copies will also be available for dissemination to such organizations.

Factor #4: The resources available to the recipient and costs. J

Resources used for LEP outreach are marketing and promotional funds received through 5310 and 5311 Grant funds,
which are used to provide posters and brochures describing available services. Efforts will be made to translate vital
documents in order to have them available whenever a request is made for such materials. MCT will make every effort to
inform LEP persons in Macon County about our transportation services. By utilizing contacts with the Macon County
Health Department, the Macon County Department of Social Services, the Senior Center, and other community-based
organizations, MCT will be able to provide cost-effective oufreach and dissemination of information to potential LEP
patrons.

LANGUAGE ASSISTANCE PLAN

As a result of the above four factor analysis, a Language Assistance Plan (LAP) was not required. However, reasonable
atternpts will be made to accommodate any persons encountered who require writien translation or oral inferpretation
services, including: Providing translation and interpretive services when appropriate (upon request or predetermined);
determining how best to take public involvement to LEP groups directly, including small group meetings; where possible,
utilizing or hiring staff who speak a language other than English; using language identification flashcards to determine
appropriate services; and establishing a process to obtain feedback on our language assistance measures.

30




10.6 DEMOGRAPHIC REQUEST

The following form was used to collect required data on Key Community Contacts and nonelected committee members. A
single copy of the “Demographic Request” form is located in Appendix G:

Macon County Transit is required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related authorities to record
demographic information on members of its boards and committees. Please provide the following information:

Race/Ethnicity:
[] White

[] Black/African American

[ Asian

"] American Indian/Alaskan Native
[] Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander
[] Hispanic/Latino

[ Other (please specify):

National Origin: (if born outside the U.S.}
] Mexican

[] Central American:

] South American:

[ Puerto Rican

[ Chinese

[ Vietnamese

] Korean

(] Other (please specify):

Gender: [] Male [ Female

Disability: [ Yes [INo

Age:

[ Less than 18 [1 45-64
[]18-29 [ 65 and older
130-44

1 choose not to provide any of the information requested above: [ ]

Completed forms will remain on file as part of the public record. For more information regarding Title VI or this
request, please contact the Macon County Transit at B28-343-2222 or by email at kangel.maconnc.org

Please sign below acknowledging that you have completed this form.

Thank you for your participation!

Name (print):

Signature:

31




Warren Cabe Macon County Emergency Management Y

Robbie Holland Macon County Sheriff's Office N

Contact information for key community contacts is not public information and is maintained outside of this document. Any
staff member who wishes to contact anyone listed above must request that information from the Title V1 Coordinator.

10.8 SUMMARY OF QUTREACH EFFORTS MADE SINCE THE LAST TITLE VI PROGRAM SUBMISSION

The following format will be used to report all outreach efforts made since our last NCDOT Title VI Compliance Review. Al
meetings and disseminations of information shall enable collection of information for the table below:

i

a

t 10:00 m. | TAB . Al Popios Administrafive & Operating rmatlon
Annually in Fall N/a Maco;a(i)‘rounty General Public Brochures and prometional items

Annually 2:00 aﬁ% -3:00 Senior Expo Elderly Residents Brochures and promotional items

Annually %00 apmm— 400 Vetergg’:\;}ftand Veterans Brochures and promotional items

11.0 STAFF TRAINING

All employees will receive basic Title VI training at least once every three years. New hires will receive this training within
15 days of their start date. Basic training wilt cover all sections of this Plan and our overall Title V1 obligations. Staff may
receive specialized training on the application of Title VI in their specific work areas. Those who routinely encounter the
public, such as office personnel, call center staff, and vehicle drivers, will receive annual refresher training. Trainings wil
be provided or organized by the Title VI Coordinator, and will often coincide with updates to our nondiscrimination policies
and procedures. Records of staff trainings will remain on file for at least three years (and in personnel files), and will
include agendas, sign-in sheets, copies of calendars, and any certificates issued.

12.0 NONELECTED BOARDS AND COMMITTEES - BY RACE AND GENDER

The table below depicts race and gender compositions for each of our nonelected {appointed} decision-making bodies.
Refer to Appendix F for member names and full demographics for each committee.

Transit Advisary Board 40 60 100

32




Strategies for Representative Committees
We will seek minority participation and strive for committees that are representative of our constituencies by:

e QOpenly asking public and small group meeting participants if they would be interested in serving on a committee.
e Seeking referrals from local organizations and key community contacts that serve or represent minorities.

»  Exploring different types of committees, such as ad hoc minority- or youth-only Citizen Advisory Committees.

» Qutreach efforts and responses {or lack thereof from those asked to serve or refer others) will be documented.

13.0 RECORD-KEEPING AND REPORTS

Records will be kept to document compliance with the requirements of the Title VI Program. Unless otherwise specified,
Title VI-related records shall be retained indefinitely. These records will made available for inspection by authorized
officials of the NCDOT andfor FTA. As a subrecipient of FTA funds through NCDOT, we are required to submit a Title VI
Program update to NCDOT every three years, the next of which is due in 2018, Reports on Title VI-related activities and
progress to address findings identified in civil rights compliance reviews and assessments may also be submitted on an
as-requested basis. It will occasionally be necessary to update this program plan and its component parts (e.g.,
complaints, Public Involvement, and LEP), applicable documents, and respensible officials. Updates will be submitted to
NCDOT for review and approval.

in addition to other items throughout this plan, records and reports due at the time of compliance reviews or
investigations will include:

Compliance Reviews

» Title VI Program Plan

o List of civil rights trainings provided or received Complaint Investigations

o Summaries from any infernal reviews conducted e Investigative Reports

Ads and notices for specific meetings e Discrimination complaint, as filed

*  Findings from reviews by any other external e List of interviewees (names and affiliations)
agencies »  Supporting Documentation (e.g., requested items,

» Title Viequity analyses and EJ assessments photes taken, dates and methods of contact, etc.)

« Discrimination Complaints Log

33




Appendix A
Applicable Nondiscrimination Authorities

During the implementation of this Title VI Program, the organization, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest, is
reminded that it has agreed to comply with the following non-discrimination statutes and authorities, including but not
fimited to:

« Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq., 78 stat. 252), {prohibits discrimination on the basis
of race, color, national origin); and 49 CFR Part 21.

« The Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, (42 U.S.C. § 4601), (prohibits
unfair treatment of persons displaced or whose property has been acquired because of Federal or Federal-aid
programs and projects);

o Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, (29 U.S.C. § 794 et seq.), as amended, (prohibits discrimination on the
basis of disability); and 49 CFR Part 27,

o The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, (42 U.S.C. § 6101 ef seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of
agey);

» The Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987, (PL 100-209), (Broadened the scope, coverage and applicability of Title VI of
the Civil Rights Act of 1964, The Age Discrimination Act of 1975 and Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, by
expanding the definition of the terms "programs or activities" to include all of the programs or activities of the Federal-
aid recipients, sub-recipients and contractors, whether such programs or activifies are Federally funded or not),

o Titles I and Ill of the Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibit discrimination on the basis of disability in the
operation of public entities, public and private transportation systems, places of public accommodation, and certain
testing entities (42 U.S.C. §§ 12131-12189) as implemented by Department of Transportation regulations at 49 C.P.R.
parts 37 and 38;

e Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits you from discriminating because of sex in
education programs or activities (20 U.S.C. 1681 et seq).

o Title VIl of the Civit Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000e et seq., Pub. L. 88-352), (prohibits employment
discrimination on the basis of race, color, Creed , sex, or national origin};

e 49 CFR Part 26, regulation to ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of DOT-assisted contracts in
the Department's highway, transit, and airport financial assistance programs;

s  Executive Order 12898, Federal Actions to Address Environmental Justice in Mincrity Populations and Low-Income
Populations, which ensures discrimination against minority populations by discouraging programs, policies, and
activities with disproportionately high and adverse human heaith or environmental effects on minority and low-income
populations;

e Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting
agency guidance, national origin discrimination includes discrimination because of limited English proficiency (LEP).
To ensure compliance with Title VI, you must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have meaningful
access to your programs (70 Fed. Reg. at 74087 to 74100);

e Federal-Aid Highway Act of 1973, (23 U.S.C. § 324 et seq.), (prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex),

« Airport and Airway Improvement Act of 1982, (43 USC § 4 71, Section 4 7123), as amended, (prohibits discrimination
based on race, creed, color, national origin, or sex);

» The Federal Aviation Administration's Non-discrimination statute (49 U.S.C. § 47123} {prohibits discrimination on the
basis of race, color, national origin, and sex).

34




Appendix B
Organizational Chart

Board of
Commissioners

‘Macon Co

Transit Director
Actountable Executive

Operations Manager
Transit Safety Officer

Transit Operators




Appendix C
NCDOT’s Compliance Review Checklist for Transit

I. Program Administration (General Requirements)
Requirement: FTA C 4702.1B — Title VI Reguirements and Guidelines for FTA Recipients, Chapter Il — General Requirements and Guidelines.

Note; Every NCDOT subrecipient receiving any of the FTA Formula Grants listed above must complete this section.

Requested Items
(Please attach electronic documents {.pdf, .doc, etc.) or provide links to online versions) Completed

A copy of the reciplent 8 signed NCDOT’S Title VI Nond1sor1m1nat10n Agreement

5 "Tltle VI Complaint Procedures (1 €., 1nstruct10ns to the public regardmg how to ﬁ]e aTitle VI ]
discrimination complaint}

7 List of tran51t-related Tltle VI investigations, complaints, and 1awsu1ts (1 e., dlscrlmmat]on ]
complalnts log)

9, Langnage Assistance Plan for providing language assistance to persons w1th limited English
proficiency (LEP), based on the DOT LEP Guidance, which requires conducting four-factor Ll
analyses

11. A copy of board meeting mlnutes resolution, or other appropnate documentation showing the
board of directors or appropriate governing entity or official(s) responsible for policy decisions L]
reviewed and approved the Title VI Program

" " - o sy SRy Y

13. If you pass through FTA funds to other orgamzatmns 1nclnde a descrlptlon of how you
monitor your sub-recipients for compliance with Title VI, and a schedule for your sub-
recipients’ Title VI Program submissions. L]
» No Sub-recipients [

15. Copies of environmental justice assessments conducted for any constructwn pro;ects during
the past three years and, if needed based on the results, a description of the program or other
measures used or planned to mitigate any identified adverse impact on the minority or low- ]
income communities
» No Construction Projects [_]

36




. Transit Providers
Requirement: FTA C 4702.18, Chapter [V — Requirements and Guidelines for Fixed Rowute Transit Providers.

Note: All NCDOT sub-recipients that provide fixed route public transportation services (.g., local, express or commuter bus; bus rapid

transit; commuter rail; passenger ferry) must complete this section.

> Not Applicable [_] (Check this box if you do not provide fixed roufe services, and skip questions 17 and 18. This section

does not apply to you if you only provide demand response services.)

Requested Items
(Please attach electronic documents (.pdf, .doc, ete.) or provide links to online versions)

Completed

17. Service standards (quantitative measures) developed for each specific fixed route mode that the

recipient provides (standards may vary by mode) must be submitted for each of the following
indicators:

Vehicle load for each mode (Can be expressed as the ratio of passengers to the fofal number of seats on a

vehicle. For example, on a 40-seat bus, a vehicle foad of 1.3 means afl seats are filled and there are approximately 12
standees.)

On time performance for each mode (Expressed as a percentage, this is a measure of runs completed as

scheduled, The recipient must define what is considered fo be “on time.” Performance can be measured against rotfe
origins and destinations only, or against origins and destinations as well as specified time points along a route.)

3 3 s ren o T T T R

T

practices do not result in discrimination on the basis of race, color or national origin, must be
submitted for each of the following:

+ Transit amenities for each mode (e.g., benches, sheffers/canopias, printad materials, escalators/elevators,
and waste receptacles. NOTE: Attach this information only if you have decision-making authority over sifing transit
amenities or you set poficies to determine the siting of amenities.)

B

37




Appendix D
Annual Education and Acknowledgement Form

Title VI Nondiscrimination Policy
(Title VI and related nondiscrimination authorities)

No person shall, on the grounds of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or
activity of a Federal-aid recipient.

All employees and representatives of Macon County Transit are expected to consider, respect, and
observe this policy in their daily work and duties. If any person approaches you with a civil rights-
related question or complaint, please direct him or her to Kim Angel Transit Director at 36 Pannell
Lane, Franklin, NC 28734; 828-349-2222

In all dealings with the public, use courtesy titles {e.g., Mr., Mrs., Miss, Dr.) to address or refer to them
without regard to their race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability.

Acknowledgement of Receipt of Title VI Program

I hereby acknowledge receipt of Macon County Transit’s Title VI Program and other
nondiscrimination guidelines. I have read the Title VI Program and I am committed to ensuring that no
person is excluded from participation in or denied the benefits of Macon County Transit’s programs,
policies, services and activities on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, as
provided by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related nondiscrimination statutes.

Signature Date

38




AYERICAN.

actFinder oy
‘Bieo LANGUAGE SPOKEN ATHOME BY ABILITY TO SPENC ENGLISH! SPOPULATON S YEARS AND:
OVER:

Universs: Pepulstion Sysersand oyer o
20002073 Amé oan Conmmurity BUNvy 5. Yoar ESIRIMSE

HokeThis i madfid viow sttty _
mgﬂmmmbnmm& ! ;quh?g:idoﬁnﬁiunpj.‘ iacucouracy; nd-al
itho-Dataund Dacumentation section, B ’

firgean o found on b Amaiéan Sommunily Sarey

e Sifa A i qi?ﬁgk: i g v eraigi rotew; aGEbHIoh 1oy, SRETRIRORSE FARY ST B Teuniien dhe Almerin CamiiiEay
pj;mbﬂthmm&gd 3y Ao - . " B

AN the At s Careiiuniy BNvey (NCEY praiduieapspuhtion, deiopid
P A R

: ¢ i g e S L 8 DE RS Biceau’s Dopulition
2 official eatlinings of shelboplifstioa tor he haton, Sales, coubsies, Calks end wwwnisan

orAcsn-hngungenl:

39




Malhodolegical ot forgul i ey e affbcing fangusge dale for 043 Users showld be swars ol ifiess. ch fiervusing
tull-ysar daficontaining dala forn zufﬁ - ;

wmlathe 20092013 Amedicers Qommurty Sivey {ALS) dile: generally refiedt Wve Fabruary 20130 of Manugement and Butgel (OME]
eions of mwropdlian ard microncktaistatisival araas: i cartalnipstances the iames, todss, snd boundurias of the princpal eiilns shown .
Acs tables may differ fom (e GHE dinrkins dueto difarences In the effective dafes oflie qsmﬁﬁm

Estimates Bfwben.endrurd populnlioe, bousing urile, endishipiadiiristics reflect bounderies ol wiban wess definedbiisedion: Censuy 2010 dala. As
& resuit; dats for urban and: el avass Yeom the ACS d6 nal nscassarly rafisel the rasults o eingolsg urbantzation:.

SRurear U S Gandlis Bureail, 3

Cofimiinity Siitvay

Expianation of Symbols:

1. A antiy I the, Wsrglh of- St R AT sR I o paranle shaeivatlons or o few Hanple observalidns were avallEblaic:
J BDTOD"NG
Br [ons o 100 few sampla cheervatiam wora svallable fo compute-an
falls N he: betwiest ifedvat-or upperinterval.ctan

Wterval oFan oper-ended distibinion.
l'cf'an open-ended disibution.
jowest inferval o upper el of on o erided. disiribution; A

Gontrofied. A slaﬂalignl fint’ i'orsnmptlnn vads,bllty {snch dpprciiate.
ihat daia for Ihis displaye: fhe number of:

. B0 Tollow
5 #n ““‘sm'y invFia mhrﬁn of ezror mﬁumn Indlicates fhat
il delt 4 et sppropiipty:
& An "9 gy I Hie rarls «arrot Ceminn B s IRt
7. An’Nenlryin the e and elr
SAMBIS-canas 9 lan small,
B AR TR means thel Bie etimilitls noteppicsbiy of fotaelidbie,

40




Appendix F

5311 Trangit Advisory-Board {TAB} Composifion
; — 5
i i
Appiicant: Macan County,
- - i i i i L i T . T 13 - - 1 T
Number of Projocted TAR Mastings for FY2047: | 4 2000 Caripua lati trow for Disabled Caleulafions

£ : i 1 : i i
Numbsr of TAB Meetings held In FY2016 as of: | 930201

TAB Membar's Name

CHUCK NORRIS

TOMMY JENKINS

4

EINDA HARBUCK

ROBERT FDWARDS.
LISA HILELAR]

3

RUCE WODTFN

KFVIN FORRB

VACANT
MATT MASON:

,v
=t
Vil

MRS Lo

oooal

41




Demographic Request

Appendix G

Macon County Transit is required by Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related authorities to record
demographic information on members of its boards and committees. Please provide the following information:

Race/Ethnicity:
[] White

[ Black/African American

[ ] Asian

[] American Indian/Alaskan Native
[ ] Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander
[] Hispanic/Latino

[] Other (please specify):

National Origin: (if born outside the U.S.)
[ ] Mexican

[] Central American:
[] South American:
[] Puerto Rican

[} Chinese

[ ] Vietnamese

[] Korean 7
[] Other (please specify):

Gender: [ | Male (] Female

Disability: [ ] Yes [ No

Age:

[]Lessthan 18  []45-64

] 18-29 165 and older
[]30-44

I choose not to provide any of the information requested above: []

Completed forms will remain on file as part of the public record. For more information regarding Title Vi or this
request, please contact the Macon County Transit at 828-349-2222 or by email at dasher@maconnc.org.

Please sign below acknowledging that you have completed this form.

Thank you for your participation!

- Name (print):

Signature:

42




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: August 14,2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: NC Department of Transportation
SUBJECT MATTER: Resolution to abandon a portion of SR 1617
COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Please see the attached letter from NC Department of Transportation District
Engineer Andy Russell for more details on this item. My understanding is

that the County Attorney is preparing the appropriate resolution as requested
in the letter. '

Attachments

Agenda Item 11C




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

JaMES H. TROGDON, I
SECRETARY

Roy COOPER
GOVERNOR

August 6, 2018

Macon County Cominissioners
James Tate, Chairman
Courthouse Annex

5 West Main Street

Franklin, NC 28734

Attention: Mr. James Tate
Re: Holt Road; SR1617
Dear Mr, Tate:

The property owners of Holt Road in the Town of Highlands have contacted our
Andrews District Office and requested North Carolina Department of Transportation abandon the
final 400 feet ¢f SR1617, Holt Road, from the State Maintained Road System in Magon County.
All property owners having legal means of ingress and egress have been notified of our
intentions and are in agreement with abandonment of this facility. North Carolina Department of
Transportation will retain the initial 2700 feet of SR1617, Holt Road, and continue routine
maintenance operations up to the point of proposed abandonment. :

[ am, therefore, requesting the Macon County Board of Commissioners consideration in
adopting a resolution to abandon the portion of SR1617, beginning at survey station 27+00 and
ending at survey siation 31+10, from the State Maintained Road System in Macon County.

Please feel free to contact me at (828) 321-4105 should you have any questions
concerning this matter,

Sincerely,

ANOY RASSELLP.E.

Andy Russell, P.E,
District Engineer

cc: Mr. Alan R, Brown, Assistant District Engineer
Mr, Mark Fill, P.E., Macon County Maintenance Enpgineer

Muailing dddress:

NC DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
ANDREWS DISTRICT OFFICE

191 ROBBINSVILLE ROAD}

ANDREWS, NC 2890t

Telephone: (828) 321-4105
Fax: (828) 3213228
Customer Service: 1-877-368.4968

Location:
191 ROBBINSVILLE ROAD
ANDREWS, NC 28901

Website: www.nedot.goy




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: August 14, 2018
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board
SUBJECT MATTER: Agreement to provide recreation opportunities

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Please see the attached document for more details. This is a continuation of
the board’s agreement to furnish the Scaly Mountain Historical Society with
an annual payment of $5,000 in exchange for making the Old Scaly School
House available to the general public for recreational purposes.

Attachments

Agenda Item 11D




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

AGREEMENT TO PROVIDE RECREATION OPPORTUNITIES

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this the day of August, 2018, by and
between Macon County ( hereinafter "County™), a North Carolina Body Politic and Corporate,
and Scaly Mountain Historical Society, Inc., ( hereinafter "Historical Society"), a Nerth Carolina
non- profit corporation.

WITNESSETH:

THAT WIEREAS the State of North Carolina by way of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-351 has
established the following as policy for the State of North Carolina concerning recreation:

"The lack of adequate recreational programs and facilities is a menace to the
morals, happiness, and welfare of the people of this State. Making available
recreational opportunities for citizens of all ages is a subject of general interest
and concern, and a function requiring appropriate action by both State and local
government. The General Assembly therefore declares that the public good and
the general welfare of the citizens of this State require adequate recreation
programs, the creation, establishment, and operation of parks and recreation
programs is a proper governmental function, and that it is the policy of North
Carolina to forever encourage, foster, and provide these facilities and programs
for all of its citizens."; and

WHEREAS, N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-352 provides that "Recreation” means activities that
are diversionary in character and aid in promoting entertainment, pleasure, relaxation,
instruction, and other physical, mental and cultural development and leisure time experiences;
and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 153A-444, the County is authorized to
establish parks and provide recreational programs; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 153A-449, the County is authorized to contract
with and appropriate money to any person, association, or corporation, in order to carry out any
public purpose that the County is authorized by law to engage in; and

WHEREAS, there is a need for recreation opportunities in the Scaly Mountain area of
Macon County, North Carolina; and

WHEREAS, Scaly Mountain Historical Society, Inc., (Historical Society), does own a
building known as the Old Scaly School House, located at 41 Buck Knob Road, Scaly Mountain,
North Carolina 28775 ( hereinafter referred to as the Old Scaly School House) and does agree
with County as provided for hereinafter for such facility to be used in part for public "recreation™

1




as that term is defined by N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-352 and provide recreational opportunities to
the general public at such location, and County does agree with Historical Society as provided for
hereinafter to appropriate and provide funds to Historical Society in accordance with the
provisions of N.C. Gen. Stat. § 153A-449 to carry out the public purpose of providing recreation
oppertunities to the general public at the Old Scaly School House.

NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE COVENANTS CONTAINED

HEREINAFTER, THE PARTIES DO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1.

That Historical Society shall make the Old Scaly School House, located at 41 Buck Knob
Road, Scaly Mountain, North Carolina 28775, open and available to members of the
general public during reasonable days and hours for recreation as that term is defined by
N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-352 for the period between July 1, 2018, and the end of June 30,
2019, and it shall provide recreational opportunities to the general public at such location.

The Historical Society shall perform its obligations hereunder in a nondiscriminatory
fashion appropriate for public activity and there shall be no discrimination by it on the
basis of race, sex or religion in its performance of such obligation.

County shall pay Historical Society upon the execution of this Agreement the sum of
$5.,000.00 for making the Old Scaly School House open and available to members of the
general public during reasonable days and hours for recreation as that term is defined by
N.C. Gen. Stat. § 160A-352 for the period between July 1, 2018, and the end of June 30,
2019, and for providing recreational opportunities to the general public.

Historical Society shall account to County for its expenditures and uses of the monies
provided by County to Historical Society in accordance with paragraph number three
above and Historical Society shall use such monies only for the public purpose of making
the Old Scaly School House open and available to members of the general public during
reasonable days and hours for recreation as that term is defined by N.C. Gen. Stat. §
160A-352 for the period between July 1, 2018, and the end of June 30, 2019, and for
providing recreational opportunities to the general public.

Historical Society shall at all times properly maintain the Old Scaly School House in a
condition for use as a safe place of public recreation.

This Agreement shall not be construed to be a lease.
Historical Society is an independent contractor.

Historical society shall maintain throughout the term of this Agreement property damage
insurance and liability insurance in amounts as will protect it against any and all damages,
liability, loss and claims to the Historical Society, Old Scaly School House,
appurtenances  and approaches thereto, in any manner caused directly or indirectly by,

2




arising from, incident to, or in connection with its use or occupancy of the Old Scaly
School House and its performance of its duties under this Agreement.

9. County may periodically inspect and monitor Historical Society's performance of its
obligations hereunder.

10.  The laws of the State of North Carolina shall control and govern this Agreement. Any

- controversy or claim arising out of this Agreement shall be settled by action instituted in

the appropriate Division of the General Court of Justice in Macon County, North
Carolina.

[1.  This Agreement may be modified only by written agreement executed by the parties
hereto.

12.  E-VERIFY. Each Party hereto shall comply with the requirements of Article 2 of Chapter
64 of the General Statutes. Further, if any party hereto utilizes a subcontractor, such
party shall require the subcontractor to comply with the requirements of Article 2 of
Chapter 64 of the General Statutes.

13.  IRANDIVESTMENT ACT CERTIFICATION. Pursuant to N.C.G.S 143-6A-5 (a), each
party hereto does hereby truthfully certify at the time of contracting that in accordance
with the Iran Divestment Act the Supplier is not listed on the Final Divestment List
created by the State Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. 143-6A-4.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have made and executed this Agreement the day
and year first above written.

Scaly Mountain Historical Society, Inc. Macon County
By: By:
President County Manager
ATTEST:
Secretary

PRE-AUDIT CERTIFICATE

This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government
Budget and Fiscal Control Act. '

This the  day of August, 2018

Macon County Finance Officer




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: August 14,2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board

SUBJECT MATTER: Fireworks permit
COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Please see the attached documents for more information regarding a request

for a fireworks display permit for a private wedding reception to be held in
Scaly Mountain on Saturday, September 15™.

Attachments 1

Agenda Item 11E




July 25, 2018

Mr. Jimmy Teem rrrr-']"he fireworks
Macon County Fire Marshal showin 4 box
104 East Main Street

Franklin, NC 28734

RE: September 15, 2018 cutdoor fireworks permit request

Dear Mr. Teem:

My name is Kirt Borcherts and I'm the Event Manager of a professional fireworks display company based in Greenville,
" 8C called Grand Finale Entertainment, LLC. I'm writing to submit this request for permit to conduct an outdoor
fireworks display on Saturday, September 15, 2018 at The Vineyard at 37 High Holly in Scaly Mountain, North
Carolina. This fireworks show is for a private wedding reception at the vineyard.

My company invented a new fireworks sclution called ViViD, The Fireworks Show in A Box! ViViD is custom made
for smaller events with minimal impact on surrounding communities and resources. ViViD reduces the historical
challenges with fireworks such as space, cost, logistics, debris, noise, and environmental impact. Here is our website if
you would like fo see more information www.vividfireworksbox.com

Grand Finale Entertainment, LLC is a fully licensed and insured fireworks operation that meets all local and federal
requirements and abides by all codes set forth in the National Fire Protection Agency's 1123 guidelines for fireworks
displays. We insure every show with $2 million in liability coverage and have fully licensed NC pyrotechnicians on staff.
| will include Macon County and the State of Nerth Carolina as additionally insured for this event.

| respectiully submit this letter and the attached documents for your consideration, We would greatly appreciate your
approval and guidance presenting this permit request fo the next Macon County Commissioners’ Monthly Meeting.
Thank you very much for your consideration. Please let me know when you approve and the next steps.

Sincerely,

Aot Borcfanta

Kirt Borcherts

Event Manager

Grand Finale Entertainment,
LLC (864) 256-0733




STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF MACON

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT TO EXHIBIT, USE AND/OR DISCHARGE
PYROTECHNICS FOR CONCERT OR PUBLIC EXHIBITION

1 Display Operator/Applicant’s full name and address: _Robyn Alexander
1113 Old Hilton Rd. Chapin, SC 29036 (Display operator for Grand Finale Entertainment, LLC)

2. Has the Display Operator/ Applicant been issued a display operator licenseunder N.C. Gen.

Stat. § 58-82A-3 and does the same remain in effect?  yES . Attach copy.
- : s The Vinevard at 37 High Holly: 37 High Holly Road, Scaly

3. Place of proposed public exh1b1t1on.Mmmain’ NC o871
4, Will the exhibition be indoor? No . If so, additional rules apply.
5. Will the proposed exhibition be in connection with concerts or public exhibitions, such as

fairs, camnivals, shows ofall descriptions and/or public celebrations? nNe . Ifso, which:
6. Will the proposed exhibition be used for any other purpose? _Yes ___ If so, what?

Private wedding

7. Does the Display Operator/Applicant have insurance in the amount of at least five hundred

thousand dollars ($500,000) or the minimum amount required by the North Carolina
Building Code pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-138(e), whichever is greater? Yes $2million
Attach full copy of the same, (See insurance certificate supplied separately.)

8. The names of all Individual(s) who are to exhibit, use, handle or discharge pyrotechnics in
connection with the concert or public exhibit: Robyn Alexander

9, Have all persons identified in #8 above completed training and licensing required under
Article 82A of Chapter 58 of the North Carolina General Statutes? _ Yes

10. Will the display operator or proximate audience display ogerator, as regluired under Article
8}%{;\ ;))f Chgpter 58 of the North Carolina General Statutes, be present at the concert or public
exhibition?  Yes

IL Will the display operator or proximate audience display operator, as required under Article
82A of Chapter 58 of the North Carolina General Statutes, personally direct all aspects of
exhibiting, using, handling, or discharging the pyrotechnics? _yes _

1. Does Display Operator/Applicant have all necessary permissions from the property owner

of the lands where the display will take place? _Yes

I certify under penalty of perjury that the responses to the above are truthful all respects.

This the 25th  day of July: 20 35 .

At Borehunta

Display Operator/Applicant: Kirt Borcherts, Event Manager







- Typ&:s of firewioiks 1o e 15 s foniains/gerbs, sﬁ‘obes, comnets, maxinmm 1.5-inch aerial repeaters all-1.4G
Cfmmer Clasae-(}" dovices.
: mottax sacks will be used iy this shiow




‘Lead Pyrotechnic Operator




PRODUCER

PROFESSIONAL PROGRAM INSURANCE BROKERAGE
DIVISION OF SPG INSURANCE SOLUTIONS, LLC
371 BEL MARIN KEYS BLVD., SUITE 220

THIS GERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER CF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS
NO RIGHTS UPCN THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AMEND,
EXTEND OR LATER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES BELOW.

INSURER{(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE

NOVATO CA., 04949-5662 ;
INSURER A* | | 6vD's OF LONDON
INSURED INSURER B:
Grand Finale Entertainment, LLC -
DBA: VIVID Fireworks Show In A Box! INSURER C:
103 Kenton Court INSURER D:

Simpsanville, SC 29681

COVERAGES

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE NAMED INSURED ABOVE
FOR THE PERIOD INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM GR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER
DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY
THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES.

co POLIGCY EFFECTIVE POLICY EXPIRATION
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE POLICY NUMBER DATE (MM,‘DD.’YY) DATE (MMIDD.’YY) LIMITS
GENE&R‘;‘%‘;?’ EACH ACCIDENT $ 2,000,000
MEDIGAL EXP (Any one
A PY/18-0003 01/11/2018 01/11/2019 person) $
FIRE LEGAL LIABILITY $ 50,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
APFLIES PER POLICY
PRODUCTS-COMP/OPS AGG $
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY (Ea accident)
— ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY
— ANY OWNED AUTOS {Per person)

SCHEDULED AUTOS

BODILY INJURY

AND
EMPLOYERS’ LIABILITY

$
3
| HIRED AUTOS {Per accident) $
| NON-OWNED AUTOS PROPERTY DAMAGE
{Per accident} $
EXCESS LIABILITY
FOLLOWING FORM EACH ACCIDENT $
AGGREGATE $
WC STATU- OTH-
WORKERS COMPENSATION TORY LIMITS ER

E.L.EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. DISEASE-EA EMPLOYEE

o lenlenlen

SRR |n

E.L DISEASE-POLICY LIMIT

OTHER

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS/LOCATIONS/VEHICLES/EXCLUSIONS ADDED BY ENDORSEMENT/SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Sara Teeter as a sponsor, The Vineyard at 37 High Holly, and Macon County, NC Commissioner's Office are Additional Insured as respects the 1.4G Class
C Aerial firework display on 09/15/2018 located at 37 High Holly Rd., Scaly Mountain, NC 28741.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

Sara Teeter
4 Sukoshi Ln.
Islamorada, FL 33036

CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANGELLED BEFORE THE
EXPIRATION DATE THEREQF, THE ISSUING COMPANY WILL ENDEAVOR TO MAIL

DAYS WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER NAMED TO THE LEFT, BUT
FAILURE TO MAIL SUCH NOTICE SHALL IMPOSE NO OBLIGATION OR LIABILITY OF ANY

KIND UPON THE INSURER, ITS AGENTMSENTATNE?

AUTHORIZEQFREPRESENTATIVE




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: August 14,2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board/Administration

SUBJECT MATTER: Ratification of telephone poll

COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

The board will need to ratify the telephone poll of the members conducted
on August 7, 2018 with regard to an accident involving a Macon County
Transit vehicle that occurred in the parking lot of the Crawford Senior
Center on that day. Please see the attached letter for details.

Attachments

Agenda Item 11F




/ | m@mn mxm,é%

J

August 7,2018 ¢

This letter acknowledges William Terry Land has paid in full the amount of
$1,800.00 to Macon County for damages to Transit van #301, license plate number -
TJ91448, N.C. which W, Terry Land was mvolved in on July 12,2018, 10:57 a.m.
in the parkmg lot of Crawford Senior Center :

This also acknowledges William Terry Land s releaSed from any and all further
liabilities from Macon County related to this accldent occumng at above date,
time, and Iocatlon .

| William Terry Land . | Derek Roland County Manager
S | MaconCounty S -

e

MACOM COUNTY COURTHOUSE ANMEX .- 5WEST MAIN STREET . FRANKLIN, NORTH CAROLINA 28734
PHOME 828-34¢-2000 ) . FAX: 828-349-2400




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

- MEETING DATE: August 14, 2018

DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board

SUBJECT MATTER: Consent Agenda

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

A.

Minutes — Consideration of the minutes from the June 5, 2018 continued session,
the June 12, 2018 regular meeting and the June 19, 2018 continued session, per
Attachment 12A.

Finance — Consideration of budget amendments #20 through #31, per
Attachment 12B.

Tax releases — Consideration of tax releases for July 2018 in the amount of
$24,377.78, per Attachment 12C.

2017 Tax Settlement Report — Consideration of the settlement report for 2017
taxes, per Attachment 12D.

Ad valorem tax collection report — Attachment 12F (this item does not require
board approval).

COUNTY MANAGER’S COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

Attachments X Yes No

Agenda Item 12 (A) (B) (C) (D) and (E)




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT July 16, 20138

AMENDMENT # 20
FROM: FINANCE
DEPARTMENT:  SOCIAL SERVICES
EXPLANATION: Carry Forward Funds from FY 17-18
DESCRIPTION INCREASE _ DECREASE
11-5831-5675-26 | SHIPP $2475
{[- 53 40-$171960] FUND BALANCE $2,475

P

A)

l

| / /HC-_/
REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD/ n/({ 7177

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER MW

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 5 / l"t/! £ Wl—q'%nu)(

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT July 24,2018
AMENDMENT # 2
FROM: FINANCE
DEPARTMENT: SOCIAL SERVICES
EXPLANATION: Carry forward revenues
DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
11-3840-4179-00 Fund Balance $2,819
11-5314-5750-55 | Donations/Gifts $2,819
//7
| / / Ny A
- = S

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD, /

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER / /é@j A /f') f-%

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

]y _maskvy

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT July 31,2018

A

AMENDMENT #

FROM: FINANCE

DEPARTMENT: SOCIAL SERVICES
EXPLANATION: Carvy L ward funds
DESCRIPTION INCREASE _ DECREASE
11-5314-5675-28 | ADOPTION FUNDS $ 16,533
H-2840- 4|94 UND BALANCE $ 16,533

22

/] e .

P
// /-
REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD g;_( /ﬂ%w

( ———
RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER TWM

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 3 // (// /8 m&cf\\&j

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT July 31,2018

AMENDMENT # Q3

FROM: FINANCE

DEPARTMENT: SOCIAL SERVICES

EXPLANATION: Additional revenues

DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
11-5314-5675-12 CRISIS PROGRAM $ 29,454
11-3561-4389-03 CRISIS PROGRAM $ 29454
11-3560-4388-03 TANF $163,176
11-5300-5566-07 CONTRACT SERVICES $145,176
11-5320-5551-07 TANF - EA $ 5,000
11-5300-5566-03 BLDG IMPROVMT $ 3,000
11-5300-5920-08 FURNITURE $ 10,000
/ 77
/

e
REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEgD i/ ~/

W ==

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

D
W=

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 57/ [ V/ /4 VYKQQ;SH—?//

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT

August 3, 2018

AMENDMENT # 2 q
FROM: FINANCE
DEPARTMENT: SOCIAL SERVICES
EXPLANATION: Foster Care donations carry forward
DESCRIPTION INCREASE DECREASE
11-5314-5675-19 FOSTER CARE - GENERAL $ 1,232
“,531..}0 ,LH 4§60 FUND BALANCE $ 1,232

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD /‘::/\[/ ‘% H

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER % D44 ﬁ’\ks‘z'ﬁ(f}/w

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 5// 1/1% W“\/j

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTE_S DATED

CLERK




INTY. BUDGET AMENDMENT
AMENDMENT#______

FROM Lindsay Leopard

Appropriation of Furid Balance into: 2018/3619

DECREASE

ACCOUNT __DESCRIPTION INCREASE

deral Forfeltire Funds

223000-499100° Fund Balance Appropriated $8,304.00

234000:559700. No Capital E’qU‘i‘pmgntL, . ' $8,304.00 _

State Forfelture Funds.

- $23001:499100 Fund Balance Appropriated $1,550.00

_1400¥559700 | Non-Capital Equipment $1,550.00




-MACON ¢ UNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT

ACCOUNT

INCREASE

DECREASE:

113840- 417§oé -

$1;958.00

114310-5609

| $1,958.00




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT
AMENDMENT #____

EXPLANATION: Need{o carry forward: unexpended donations money to-¢

ACCOUNT __DESCRIPTION __ INCREASE ___ DECREASE
113840-417900 ____|Fund Balance Appropriated | 1230f

114380-575055 __|Donations - Animal Gontrol | 1230

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 5”//4/ 1&

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED:

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT Date:

DEPARTMENT: HEALTH |
EXPLANATION: Need to roll unexpended Cost Settlement Money to-the.current FY.

ESCRIPTION _ INCREASE

DECREASE

‘B ‘Iance Approprlated 107,002.00

2,000:00

2,000.00

5,000.00

1 Joao o]

56, 578'00‘

2550001

‘“18 173, 0

‘5]_-550005

136 00

143&0& ‘

wlealealololel  |vwle|elvimisinle

366.00 |

RECOMMEN: BBE‘INANCEOFFICER L

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER:

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACON COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT " Date: m 9:201 8
AMENDMENT # 2 9

DEPARTMENT: HEALTH_

Need toroll uitexpended MAP (Medical Ac;cess Program} Money to current FY.

ACCOUNT __ DESCRIPTION
113840-417800 _|Fund Balance Appropriated
|1156120-586011 School Health-Operating

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER

APPROYVED AND ENTEREDON'MINUTES DATED

CLERK




MACQN COUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT
AMENDMENT #__

FROM: FINANCE

PLANATION: Appropriate insurance furnds received for Transit van.

ACCOUNT ___DESGRIPTION INCREASE  DECREASE
-4935-5565-03 _|Vehicle Repairs & Maintance § 142400 |

11-3839-4850-00 _linsurance Settlement _1$ 142400

REQUESTED BY DEPARTMENT HEAD: - Kim Angel

RECOMMENDED BY FINANCE OFFICER ’63 A

APPROVED BY COUNTY MANAGER;

N g/

ACTION BY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:__&" !fi,f / (£

APPROVED AND ENTERED ON MUNIS DATED:




WIACON EOUNTY BUDGET AMENDMENT

ANENDMENT #

S

DEPARTNAENT

EXPLANATION

Vetarans Services

Cartyforward of dohation to FY 19

DESCRIPTION.

“increase

DECREASE

lxas4op

500 |

_417900|Fund Balance'Appropriated

525055

Donations.

500

_ 115830

REQUESTED BY DEPARTME

RECOMMENDED 8Y. FINANGE DEFIC

APPROVED & ENTERED ON M

CLERK




Macon County Tax Office
5 West Main Street.
Franklin, NC 28734

Phone; (828) 349-2149
Fax: (828) 349-2564
tmedowell@maconncorg

TO: MACON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
FROM: Macon County Tax Office
Teresa McBowell, Tax Collections Supervisor
DATE: August 1, 2018
RE: Releases

Attached please find the report of releases for real estate that require your approval in order to
continue with the process of releasing these amounts from the:tax accounts. Please feel free to contact
me if you should have any questions regarding these releases. The report of the reieases formatted in
alphabetical order is attached,

AMOUNT OF RELEASES FOR JULY, 2018: $24,377.78




I

Tax Collections
08/01/18

Detail Transactions by Gmuﬁ.

rCoza303
Page 1

Groy

Seq Date

Nbr

55 07/26/18
H k&

56 07/26/i8
Ak k

64 07/30/18
e

52. 07/25/18
o

2 87/03/18
*AH

3 a7/n3/18
AR

4 27/03/18
L]

51 a7/25/18
*k ok

5 07/G3/19
AN

-1 07/03/18

Number REL¥18%Q7

Avcount
Rumber  Numi:

¥i238 1aA6598303433

11238 18A6595213483

ARGEL MEDICAL CENTER

245 1BAG593496656

ANGEL, PHILLIP LARRY
39721 18A0000301969

APPLIED INDUSTRIAL MATERIALS C©
7208 16AD001100114
RSHEVILAZ MICA COMPANY
7208 15A00021100114
ASKEVILLE MICA COMPANY
7208 17R000T100114
ASHEVILLE MICA COMPANY
137587  18AGSTBILETS6
BALILES, MARIANNE CATHY
10835  17A0000801324
BRANTLEY, DOROTHY K

1083% 16A0000801324

Abatement

EfFsctive Date 07/03/18
Tax Transaction Levy Panalty BAddl Interest Disent T¥n Check Trang Rev.
Code Amount Amcwnt  Ameunt  Chgs Amount Amount Cde Number Descriptn
[£1EN 3517.57- 3517.87- g.4a0 0.00
FO1l 549.31- 549,31 .00 ¢.00
4066.83- 4066.88- 0. 0¢ 2.00 0.00 0.00 R GLRERICA
Go1 11910.99~ 119%0.929- 0.00C 0.00
POl 860,03~ 1860.03- 0.9¢ Q.00
1377%,.02- 13771.02- 0.00 0.060 0.00 0.00 R CLERTICA
G0 2%9.56- 29.56- 0.04 0.00
F02 0.65- 0.65~ .00 o.00
30.21- 30.21% G.00 0.go 0.6o 0.00 R CLERICA
5ol 30,05~ 3¢.01~ ¢.00 0.00
30,03~ 30.01- a.p0 0.9¢ G.00 06.00 R CLERICA
GOL 4. 82~ 4.82~ 0.00 G.00
w08 1.52- 1.52- 0.¢0 .00
AQ 5,50~ G. o0 5.00~ .00
11.34-~ 6,34~ 9.00 5.00- 0.06 9.00 R CLERICA
an: 4.82- 4.82- 4.co 4.00
FOB 1.52- 1.52- 9.00 0.06G
A0 3.00- 9,00 5.00~ 9.0¢
11,34~ 6.34- G.00 5.09- 0.00 0.6 R CLERICA
GOL 4.82- 4,82- 9,00 9,00
halid:d 1.52- 1.52- 0.00 0.00
Al 5.00- a.i0  5.00- 0.00
11.34- 6,34~ 0.400 5.00- Q.00 0.0 R CLERICA
Ga). A2B.73- 228.73- 0.00 0.00
Fo8 T2.29- 72.29- 0.00 0.00
Loi §5.0Q~ 0.00 95.00- 0.00
396,02 301.02- 0.0 95,080~ 0.00 0.40 R CLERICA
GOl 34,90~ 34,90~ Q.00 o.00
FO5 6.81- §.8%1- 6.09 0.00
A 5.00- 0.04) .00~ 0.00
46.71- 41.7%- ¢.0d 5.60~ 0.00 0.0 R CLERICA
GOl 34.90- 34 50~ ©.00 0.00




Detail Transactions by Group RTCO0Z0303

Page 2
il - -. : == d okl 2 =mas =m=as -
Grogp Number RELSLa+07 ' Abatement Eftective Date t7/03/18
Seqg  Date: Agcount  Taxbill Tax Transaction Levy Pepalty Addl Interest: Discnt Trnt Check  Trans Rev
Nbr Number  Number Code Amount: Amount  Amount  Chgs Amount Amount Cde Nunber Descriptn
A0 9.00- .00 5. 00 0.00
bl BRANTLEY, DOROTHY K 46,72~ 4L, T3~ 4.00 £.00- a.00 9.00 R CLERICA
1 07/03/18 10835 15A0Q00807324 Go1 34.50- 4§, 90- .00 0.00
Fos 5,81~ §.81- 4.00 0.00
AQ 5.00- a.c0 5.00- 0.00
el BRANTLEY, DCROTHY K 46.71- 43.7L- 0.00 5.00- 0.0¢ 0.00 R CLERICH
36 07/20/18 46526 1826513748771 Go1 275.88= 275..88= 2.60 .06
FO5 53.82- 53,82~ 9.08 0. 80
Ak BUCHANAYN, NANCY J. 329.70+ 329,70+ 0.G0 8.00 .90 g.00 ® CLERICA
59 07/27/18 %BEES 17458485, 05 G303 17.14- 17,14~ 2.G0 0.0
F10 053~ 0,53~ 0.00 0. 40
Loz 55. 00~ 0.60 95,00~ 0.4q0
ek CHASTAIN, ANITA MAY 1k2.67- 17.67- 0.00 95.00- .00 9.00 R CLERICA
&0 07/27/18 58685 18A58685.. 05 301 17.80- 17r.8C- 0.00 0.4qc
Fl0 0. 58~ 8.55- g.00 0.9¢
Lo 85.400- 0.00 385.00- 0.0¢C
e CHASTAIN, ANETA MAY k3, 35- 18.35- 0.00 95.00- 0.9¢ 0.00 R CLERICA
&1 0F/27/18 142476 1BAE583906263 GOL 49.56- 49.56~ .00 .90
Foz 10.86~ 10.86~- a. 40 0.a¢
L CRINER, GARY 60.42~ 60.42~ 0.4¢ 9.C0 0.96 Q.00 R CLERICA
52 07/27/18 142476 18A6593002340 aol 36.40~ 36.40- 0.00 0.00
FO2 7.98~ 7.98- a.06 0.0¢
R CRINER, GARY 44 . 38- 44.38~ [ 0.60 g.00 0.00 R CLERICA
48 a72/24/18 84824 18A84624.01 GO0l ag.13- g.00 98.13- 0.00
ki DISH NETWORK 98.13- 0.00 88.13- 0.00 0.0C¢ 0.00 R CLERICA
35 n7/20/18 89972 L7ASS972.03 G0L 3.54- 3.54- 0.08¢ 0.08
F04 0. 54~ 0.54- 0.0Q 0.00
Lol 95..00- G.Q¢ 95.00- 0. 0¢
*Hh FEAGLEY, BLFRIEDE LUISE 99.08- 4,08~ G800 95.60- 0.00 0.00 R CLERTCA.
8 07/03/18 952 17ROG00Z01 018 [<hE 78.53- 78.53- 9. 90 o.08

Al 5.00- .00 8..00- .00




Tak Collections
0B/01/18

Detail Transactions by Group

RTCO26303
Page 3

droup Number REL*18%07

Seq Pate Account
Nbr Humber
R FRANKS,
] o7/03/18 952

e FRANKS,

16 97/03/18 852

ik FRANKS,

11 07/03/18 952

"ex FRANKS,

12 . 07/83/18 952

Ehde FRANKS,

13 07/03/18 952

14 07/03/18 952

sk FRANRS
,

15 07/03/18. 952

18 ar/0%/18 952

wew PRANKS,

17 07/03/18 952

Wi FRANKS,

18 07£03/18 952

Paxbill
Number

£ # HEIRS

16AD000202018

B H HEIRS

1540000201018

E H HEIRS

14X0000201018

E K HEIRS

1320000201018

E H HEBIRS

12A000020E018

E B HEIRS

11A00900201018

E K HEIRS

10A0000201018

& H HEIRS

09R0201018

E H HEIRS

U8A0ZO1GLE

E'H HEIRS

0TAO201CLE

Tax
Code

doz
Al

oL
Al

GoL
Al

G0l
AC

[=1153
AU

Qez.
A

Qe
AL

aoL
A

[elth
Al

GoL
p.10)

Abatement.
Tramgaction.
Amount
831,53~

75.53-
5.9¢-

B3.53-

78.53-
5,06~

83,53~

6.28~
5.00-

11.28-

6.28-
5.00-~

1%.28-

6.28~
5.00-

11.28-

€.28+
4.00-

10.28-

€.28-
4:.00-

10.28-

5.94-
4.00-

9.94-~

5.94-
4,00~

9,94~

5.51-
4.00-

Levy
Amount

78,53~

78.53~

78.53~

78,93~

78.53-

5.28-

6.28-

6.28-

6.28-

6.28-

6.28-

6.28-

6.328~

&.28-

6.28-

5.94-

5,94~

5.94-

5,94~

5.51-

Peralty
Amount
G.00

0.00
0.00

0.00

o.00
t.00

4.00

0.00
0.00

.00

0.00
0.00

9,00
2.60

Q.60

0.60
0.090

Addl
Chgs

§5.00-

5.00-

5.00~

5.00-

8.00-

5..00~

5.00-

5,00+~

5.00-~

5.00-

5.00-

4.00-

4.00-

4.00-

4.00-

4,00-

4.00-

4,00~

4.00-~

4.00-

Effective.Date 07/03/18

Interest Digont Trn Check

Amount. Amount

o.09

¢.00
0.00

¢.00
G.00

G.00

0.00

0.co
0.00

. 00
o, 00

Trans Rev

Cde Number Descriptn

R

CLERICA

CLERECA

CLERTAL

CLERICA

CLERICA

CLEREQA

CLERICA

CLERICA

CLERTCA

CLERICA




s = =2

Fax Colléctions
GB/01/18

Detail Transactions by Group

RTCO2GIO03
Page 4

GFoup Mumber REL*1g+07

Seq Date Account.
Wby Humibet
LR ]

44 67/23/18 142478

54 D7/26/18 5B479

43 67/23/18

5024

58 07/21/19 129678

50 07/24/18 129584
Kkk JANSSEN,
13 e7/63/18 1564
ko JUHNSON,
20 07/03/18 1584
kn JOHRSON,
21 07/03/18 1564

ok ke JOHNSON,
13 0772318 1394032
A JOHNSON,
22 o7/03/18 2389

Taxbiil

Number

FRANKS, E H WEIRG

18A142478.C3

GARRIN, MARGARET

18A6554457535

HARDEN, JYMMIE EARLYNN

19RE566198857

HENRY, REBECCA

1BR125678.03

HENSON, JAMES R

18A129684,09

LINDA DRAGH

L7AB000201717

C E & 8 R ROGERS HEIR

18RCHOU2017LT

CE & 8 R ROGERS HEIR

1540000291717

¢ E & 5 R ROGERS REIR

1BRE4ARTE3037

SARA R

1I7R0000400480

Tax

Code

GOl
Fi4
LC1

G0l
FOS

GOl
Fe7

201
FO4

6oL
F08

o1
A0

el
AU

GOl
AQ

301
Fo3

felohd

Abatement
Transaction
Anount
2.5~
3,48
0. 54~
95, 040
99.03-

138.60~
27.04-

165,64~

209.24-
60.46-

265.60-

33.48-
3.6X-

27.09-

8,19~
G.96-

6.15-

50,26~
5.00-

55.26~

50.26-
5.00-

55.26~

50.26-
5.00-

55.26~

143 .40~
28,7

170,11~

i1s.71-

Amount

5.51-
3.49~
0.54-
4.3~

138.60-
27,04~

165.64-

209.14~
60.46-

269.60-

23.48-
3.61-

27.09~

5.19~
G, .26~

6,315~

5G. 26~

50.26-

50.26-

50,26~

50.26-

50.28-

143.40-
26,71~

170.11-

5. 7%~

Penalty

Amount
Q.0¢
¢.00
0.0¢
o.0g
0.0%

0.40
G.00

000

AL
Chigs

4.00~

85.40~

95.00~

0.040

5.00-

5.00-

5.00-

S.00~

5.00-

5.00-

0.0¢

Interest Disent Trn Check

Effective Date 07/03/18

Trang Rev

Amcunt. Amount Cde Number TDescripkn

.60
&.00

0.c0
8.00

0.00
9.00

g.0e

o.00

0.99
0.90

0.08
0.00

0.00

.00

¢.o0
¢.00

0.00

0.00

B CLERICA
R CLERICA
R CLERICA
R CLERICA
R CLERICA
R CLERICA
B CLERICA
R CLERICA
R CLERICA
R CLERICK




Tax Collections
os/o1/ig

Group Kusber REL*Y

Seq Date

Ny

hH LEASE,. LAURA MRS ESTATE
23 07/03/18 2369 160600400480
bl LEESE, LAUAR MRS ESTATE
24 07/05/18 2358 1580000400480
*hk LEASE, LAURA MRS HEQTATE
38 07/20/18 140719 18A6S85558094
dode LONG, PANSY

57 ¢7/27/18. 37798 1986594146535
Rk MCCARTHEY, GERRY MICHAEL
47 07/24/18 136828  18A753040805%
hiid MORRIS, WILLTAM T. TRUSTEE
53 07/25/18 139510  1BAT439200504
il REYNOLDS, WILLISEM %,

39 07/20/18 116885  1BALI6BE5.01
*w ROBIDOUX, ROBERT ALAN
4.0 07/20/18 116885  17A116885.01
*Rx ROBIDOUX, ROBERT ALAN

41 07/20/18 116885  16A115885.01

Tax

Code

G0
Ad

GhL,

G0l
FO1

Go1
FO1

GOl
Fl0
HO1

GOl
FLO

ao:
Fb2
L4

elis
Fo2
LOL

G0l

Fox

Lol

Detail Transactions by Group RTC020303
’ Page -1
Abatement: Effective Date 07/03/18
Transaction Levy Pehalty Addl Interest Digcont Trn Check  Trane Rav
Amount: Amourit.  Amount  ¢hgs Amount Amount Cde Niumber Desoriptn
20.71~ 15,71~ 0.00 5,00~ 0.00 0.00 R CLERICA
35.71~ 15,71~ 0.940 ¢.00
‘5.00~ 0.00 5,00~ ¢.00
20.71~ 15.71~ 0,09 5.00~ ¢.00 0.00 R CLERICA
15,71~ 13, 7L~ .00 ¢.00
.40~ .00 5.00- G.00
20.71- 3.7~ G.00 5.00- c.on 0.00 R CLERICA
106.88- 106, 88- .00 G.oD
16.6%- 16.69- &.00 ¢.00
123.87- 123.57~ g.00 ¢.00 a.00 G.00 R CLERICA.
¥1%.27- 1:12.37- a.00 0.00
17.%3 17.53- 8.00 9.00
129,890~ 129.80- &.00 6.c0 0.00 g.00 R CLERICA
299 .27~ 289.27- 0.G0o 0.00
9.26- 9.26- §.00 .90
140.63- 140.63- 4.00 0.00
449.15- 449 16— 9. 00 .00 a.40 9.60 R CLERICA
196,14+ 196.14~ 2.60 0.40
6.07- &.07- 9.00 ¢. 90
202.21- 202.2%1- 0.00 0,09 9.00 9.6 R CLERICA
3.91- 3.91- 0.00 0.00
a9.86- 0.86- 0.00 0.00C
85.00- 0.00- 35,00~ 0. 00
99,77~ &, ¥~ 4.00 95.0C- 0.00 0.06 R CLERICA
8.3 §.73- 0. 00 v.00
1.93- 1.91- 000 0.00
1%0,00- 0.90 190.00- 0,00
200'.64-~ 1¢.64- 0.40 190.08- 4,00 0.0¢ R CLERICA
9, 69~ 9. 69- 0.ge 0.00
2.13- 2,33- 0.40 0.00
190.C0- 0.00 X90.00- 0.09




Tax Collecticns

68/01/38

Detail Transactions by Group

RTCO20343
Page &

Group Nimber REL*18+067

Seq
Hbx

27

L 2

28

29

EE 2

30

Cate

@rfea/ie

G7/03/18

o7/05/18

07/03/18

a7/03/18

07/03/18

a7/24/18

07/20/18

07/03/18

17088

Account  Taxbill
Runber  Humber
ROBIDOUX, ROBERT ALAN

14727 1750000202260

ROGERS, 8§ I, HEIRS

1472% 1680000202260

ROBERS, S L HBIRS

14727 150000202260

ROGERS, 8 L EEIRS

1740200500571

SCOFIELD, FRANK
17088 16A0C00R0097E
SCOFIELD, FRANK
17088 1540000900971
SCOFIBLD, FPRANK

112265 1BA112265.08

SHERIIF, FRANK

17322 IBA6594892759

SOUTHARD, HOWARD W

42454 1740000300985

STANFIELD, EDWINA

Abatement

Tax Trangaceion

Code Amount
261,82~

Go1 34.90-
a0 5,00~
19.90~

G0l 34,20-
AD .00~
36.90-

GO1 34.90-
A0 §.00-
3%2.90~

GO 41 .88~
k] 7. 72~
AD 5.00-
54.60-

GOl 41.88-
P03 7.72-
AD 5.00-
54.60-

agl 41,88~
FO9 T.72-
AQ 5. 00~
54.60-

Qo1 28.39-
05 5.54-
33.93-

{01 236,70~
Fil 36.96~
273 .66~

G01 92. .63~
AQ 5.00-
97.83~

Levy Penalty

Apount

11.8z2-

34.90-

34.90-

34.90-

34.90-

34,30~

34.90-
41.88-

7.72-
49.60-
41.88-

7,72+
49.60-
41.88-

7.72~-
49.606-

28 .39
5.54-

33.93-

236.76-
36 96—

273 .66~

8Z.83-

92.83~

Addl
Amcunt  Chgs
g.0¢ 198, 00-
0. 00
.40 5.00-
.ol 5,00~
0.90
0.9¢ 5,00~
Q.90 5.00-
0.9¢
g.9¢ 5.00-
0.00 5.00-
0.00
0.90
0.00 5.00-
0.00 5.G0-
0.o00
0.00
0.0¢ 5.00~
b.ao 5,00~
0.00
0.06
0.49¢ 5.00-
g-.49¢ 5. 06~
0.90
.00
0.900 0.00
0.9¢
0.900
¢.06 9.00
0.00
0.00 5.00-
0.90¢ 5,00~

Effectivie Date 07/03/18

Interesat Discnt Trn Check
Amount Emount Cde Mumbier Desdxipon

6.00

0.00

.00

0.049

0.90 R

0.00 R

CLERTCA

CLERICA

CLERICA

CLERICA

CLERICA

CLERICA

CLERICA

CLERICA

CLERICA

CLERICA

Trans Rev




32

o7/03/18 42454

1680000300985

GO1

92,83~

92.83~

o.0d

.00




Sxuagh

Tax collections
a8/037/18

" Debail Transactions by Gxoup

2 e

RIC020303
Page T

Group Nuiber REL*18407

Segs  Date Account: Taxbill

Nor Number  Number

'YL STANFIELE, BRWINA

33 07/03/18  addss 1548000300985
wan STANFIBLD, EDWINA

1 07/03/18 10804 LTACGTH3DE683 L
b VEITH, JOYCE

34 07/03/18 10846 16A0000361831
ok VEITH, JOYCE

42 07/23/18  1%411 18A19411, 03
EASS WALDROOP, FREDDY

63, ©7/30/18 69628 18AG568965128
whe WELCH, WILLA JEAN

45 07/23/18 138753 18R657416423]
Lol WISMAN, JBAN

Tax Transaction
Tode Amonnt
AQ 5.00-
97.83-

GOL 92.83-
A 5,90~
97.83-

GO1 506.96~-
At 5.00-
£11.96-

GG1 506,96~
Al 5.00~
511.96-

GOl 3.49-
¥O1 0.55-
Lol 95,00~
89 .04~

GOl 99.81-
F08§ 32.31-
132.12-

GOk 17%.726-
Fos 33.%2-
205,22~

..:.Ltgﬁént =

Levy

Amount

92.83-

43.83-

92.83-

506,96~

506,98~

506. 96~

506,96~
3.49~
0.55-
4.04-

99.81-
32.31-

132.32-

1731.10=
33.52~

205.22-

Penalty
Amaunt

Q.60

0.00
0.00
0.06

0.06

Addl
Chgs

.00~

5.00-

5.00~

5.00-

5.00-

5.00~
5.00-

5.00-

95,00~

25.00~

Interest Discnt Trn Cheelk

Effeptive Date’ 07/031/18

Trans Rev

Aftount. Amount Cde Nunber Descrigtn

9.00
9.00

0.00
0.006

.00
.00

&.00

R. CLERICA
R CLERICAh
R CLERICA
R CLERICA
R CLERICA
R CLERICA.
R CLERICA




Tax Collections

08/01/18

Detxil Transactions by Group

RTCU20303
Page: -3

Seq
Nbr

Date

Account Taxbill
Fumber  Numbex

Tax "fransaction Levy Penalty AddlL

Code Amount Amount  Amount  Chgs
Tax Code Totals
AQ*QT -~ ADV COST 4,00~ ¢.00 .80
AQ*(18 - ALV COST 4,00~ 0.00 0.00
AQ¥09 - ADV COST 1.00- 0.00 .00
AQ*1G: -~ ADV COST 4,00~ Q.00 . eo0
AONLE - BDV COBT 4.00- 0.00 0,60
A0%1zZ - AV 5.00- 0.00 0.00
AO*L - ADY CORT 5.00- 0.00 G.00
AD*14 - ADV COST 5.00- 0.00 a.co G0
AQ%1E - ADV CosT 40.p0- 0.0% 0,00 49,00~
AD*1E - RDV COST 45.00= ¢.0¢ 0.00 45,60~
A0*L7 - ADV COST 45.00- .00 0.00 A45.00-
F0l*18- FR FIRE 2481.07- 248307~ 0.00 0,00
FO2*le- ClIr CH FR 2. E3- 2,13~ o.00 0.089
FQ2#17- CL, CH FR 3.9~ .92~ 0.00n 9.0Q
F02%18- CL CH FR 20.35- 20.35- 0.00 0.60
FO3+18- OTTO FR 26.71~ 26.71- 0.00 0.00
F04*17- CULL FR 0,58~ 0.54~ 2.60  0.00
F04*1B- (ULL FR 4,315~ 4,15~ 0.00  0.00
FO5*15- WM FIRE 6.81- 6.81- 0.00 a.60
FOE*16- WM FIRE 6.81~ 6.81- 0.60 0.00
FO5*17~ WM FIRE 6.8~ 6.8k~ 0.p0  0.00
FQ5+%18~ WM FIRE 118.92- 119.92- 0.60 0.00
FO7+18- BT FIRE 60,46~ 60. 46 0.00 0.00
FO8*15- COWEE FR 1.52- 1.52~ 9.00 0.00
FOB¥L6- COWEE FR 1.52- 1,52~ 0.00 0.00
FOB*L7- COWER FR 1.52- 1,852~ 0.00 0.00
FOB¥13- COWER FR 104 .60~ 104.60~ 9.00 0.00
FOY*15- WANT FR 7.72- 7.72~ 0.00 0,00
FOI*LE~ NANT FR 7.72- 7.72- 0.00 .00
FO*E7- MANT FR T.72- T2~ 0.00 a. 6o
FOYv18- NANT PR G.96- 0. 496~ a.o0c 0.o00
Fi0%17- HLDS FR G.53- 2.53- 0.00 0.00
FlO*18-~ HLDS FR 15.88- i5.88- 0.00 0.00
G107 GEN ThX 5.81- 5.51- a.po g,0D
GY1+03- GEN TAX 5.94- 5,94 9.00 ¢.00
GO1*03- GEN TAX 5.94- 5.94- 0, 00 0. 00
G01*%10- GEN TAX .28~ 6,28~ 0.00 Q.00
GO1%11- GEN TAX 6.28- 6.28- 8.00 C.00
GOL*13~ GEN TAX 6. 28~ 6,28~ 0..00 .00
G01*:3- GEN TAX 6.28~ 6,28~ a.00 0.00
G01%14- GEN TAX 6.28- 6.28- G.00 ©.00
GO1l*i5- GEN TAX 353,83~ 353,83~ .09 .00
GO1*16~ GEN TAX 870.48~ 8740 .48~ .00 ¢.00
GO1l*i7- GER TAX 890.20- 8§90.20~ (U] G.00
GOL*18- GEN FAX 17976.49- 17878.36~ 98.13~ 0.00
HOL¥18- HLD {FTY 140,63« 148,63~ G, B0 .00
LOL*16- RES FEE 390, 00- 0.00 0.00 190,00~
Lex*17- RES FERE 380.00- .00 .00 390.00-

Abatement

Effective Date 07/03/18

Interest Discnt Trn Check  Trans Rev
Amount Amount Cde Number Descriptn

o006
[T
0.00
0.900Q
0.00
¢ .90
0.90¢
0.08
0..0¢
0.9¢
0.0¢
a.90
Q.00
0.0¢
a.00
q.0e

0.00
0. 00
0.06
9.00

Q.00
Q. 0
Q.00
0.06
Q.00
a. ot
0,00
0..00
0.00
a.00
0.80
0.60
g.00
0.00
4.00
4.00
4.00
8.00
2.00
4.00
.00
.60
0..00
0,00
.00
. 0o
.00
0.0

0. 00
0.60
0,00
0.00
0.060
000
0.00
.00
.00
.00
0.00
000
¢.00
.00
.00
.00
¢.00
0.00
¢.00
.00
.00
0.00
¢.a0
¢, 00
¢.00
¢.00
2.00
.00
2.00
0.00
0.00
¢.00
¢.00
¢.09
8.00
5.00
6.00
9.00
0.040
0.00
0.00
0.040
0.08
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.04
0.00




LOol*18- RES FEE

Toval for Group
RELA18%07

475.00-

24377 ,78-

0.99

23069 65~

G.00 475.00-

88.13-210.00-

Q-.00

Q.00

.00

}. 00




Tax Collections

08/01/18

Datail 'i‘ra.i:saction by Group

© RTC020303
Page 9

Group Mumber REL*18%07

Seqg
Nbr

Date

Account
¥umber

Taxkill
Number

e dedode Ao ek

Cycle
A

Tax

Code

Abatement
‘transaction Levy Panalty
‘Amount Amount  Amount

Totals By Tax Cycle wadrdddiehsy

Current Delinguent

21426.22- 2951,56~

EEEective Date. 07/03/18

RGA1 Interest Discnt Trn Check  Trans Rev
Chgs Amount Amount Cde Number  Descriptn




Macon County Tax Office
S West Main: Street
Franklin, NC 28734

TO:

FROM:

RE:

DATE:

. Phone:: (828} 9-2149
Fax: (828)349:2564
tmedowell@macoting.org

Macon County Board of Commissioners

Teresa McDowell
mMacon County Tax Collections Supervisot

Settiemerit. Report for 2017 Taxes

August 10,:2018

Each year North Carolina General Statute §105-373 dictates thata serigs of reports b.e made- available to
* the Macon County Commissioners as-a.part of the annual $ettlement for the Tax Collector. The reports
that are attached are identified as foltows:

1.

2.

A summary of the collection practices and remédies employed by the tax collector.

A financial report for the most recént fiscal year’s taxes that balances all of the amounts.charged
to the tax collector for collection, including taxes, discoveries; penalties, fees and interest,
against the amounts actually coilected. (Settlement Report)

A sworn statement that states that diligent effort has been made by the Collector to collect any
taxes due by reasonable means available for collection procedures.

A list of delinquent property taxes from the mast recent year owed by taxpayers who own real
property in the jurisdiction. This list is further identified as the same list that was provided as
the advertising list for publication in the local paper. Please note that this list was generated in
February of 2018 for advertisement purposes, and many of the accounts on this list have been
paid in full at this time. This list is on file in the Macon County Tax Collector’s Office and will
be provided if needed.

A list of delinquent property taxes from the most recent fiscal year owed by taxpayers who do
not own real property in the jurisdiction (personal property.) This list is on file in the Macon
County Tax Collector’s.Office and will be provided if needed.




MACON COUNTY
Tax Collection Procedures:
8/10/2018

TAX COLLECTIONS:

The Tax Collections Office staff consists of a Tax Collection Supervisor, and: two (2) Deputy Tax
Collectors, all of whom are certified through the North Carolina Association of Tax Collectors, The
collection procedure involves processing payments through checks, cash and electronic payments.
Property owners may pay their taxes though the mail, phone- based transactions, on-line, in person and
through a secure drop-off box located in front of the annex building. Many accounts are also paid
through an electronic process.utilized by escrow companies, service companies and by Auto-Agent,
which is a software program that mortgage/escrow companies utilize in order to eliminate 98% of
refinds,

The collections office staff utilizes diligent effort to collect bath the current year taxes and any
delinquent taxes. Collection of the current year taxes involves the processes as mentioned above as
well as a lockbox service which is provided through the Wells Fargo bank. This service involves Wells
Fargo staff electronically processing paymients, with a report provided to the office staff daily, with
payments processed and balanced by the collections staff on the same day. Also, this staff works closely
with escrow companies, service companies, and Auto-Ageént to electronically process payments that are
forwarded eachyear. As always, we process payments on-site, and service many property owners who
pay directly through our office.

We have increased the use of enforced coliections through this office in recent years. Enforced
collections involve processes utilized to collect delinquent taxes. “These processes include: garnishment
of bank accounts, garnishment of Department of Revenué retirns, garnishment of rents or other dollars
held by a third party, and as a last resort, the foreclosure process.

As noted above, the foreclosure process is now utilized:in this office with successful results, We
contract with attorney Jeff Goss, of Ridenour & Goss to handfe our foreclosures. The mortgage style
foreclosure process is utilized, resulting in a much more efficient process, with-attorney involvement
thraughout. This process is initiated with a demand letter for payment, which regularly restlts in
payment without any other part of the process being utilized. In my opinion, the inclusion of this
pracess is necessary to- insure that the tax collections rate is kept at the maximum amaount achievable.

Prior to enforced collections being utilized, a property owner is notified by billings in July of each year,
sezond notices which are mailed in January of each year, advertisement in the newspaper which is
Heduled for March of each year, and various other communications which are mailed directly from
his office. Processes for payment also include pre-payments, which allow a property owner to divide
her tax bill into twelve (12) “pre-payments” prior to the bill being issued or partial payments after
the billg:are issued and prior to the delinquency date,

Processing and balancing of fund collectfon reports are issued to the flnance office on a daily, monthly,
and yeaarly basis.

The increase in the use of enforced collections and other collection procedures has resulted in the
historically high collection rate of 98.41% in connection to the 2016 taxes,




-

TO: Macon County Board of Cammissioners

FROM: Teresa McDowell
Tax Collections Supervisor

DATE: August 10, 2018

In accordance with N.C.G.S. §105-373(a) (1), | respectfully submit the following Statement; .
The following lists are on file and available for review in the Tax Colléctions Office. (1) a list of the
persons owning real property whose taxes for 2017 remain unpaid, along with the principal'amount
owed by each person (the advertisement list which was developed and made available in February,
2018); and (2) a list of the persons not owning real property whose personal property taxes for 2017
remain unpaid, along with the principal amount owed by each person.

In compliance with N.C.G.S. §105-373(a) (3}, attached hereto is a Report entitled “Macon County
Settlement Report-2017 setting forth my full settiement for all taxes in my hands for collectzon of the
2017 taxes;.as well as any delinquent taxes owed.

eby.certify that | have made diligent efforts to collect the taxes due from the persons listed
er that is reasonably necessary.

Respectfully submitted,

Teresa McDoweII Tax Collections Superwsor

" SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME, this 10" day of August, 2018.

My Commission Expifes:

ber 202




Macon Coun‘tj
2017 Tax Settlement
2017 Delinquent Tax Settliement
2017 Landfill Settlement
2017 Landfili Delinquent Tax Settiement

2017 Fire Department Tax Settlement
2017 Fire Depariment Delinquent Tax Settlement
Highlands & Franklin

2017 Highlands City Tax Settlement
2017 Highlands City Delinquent Tax Settlement




Settlement for Current Taxes for

Fiscal Year 2017 2018
General Taxes GO1*17
Charges.
Original Levy 26,215,456.83
Discovery Levy 92,864.15
Corporate Utility Levy 554 83557
Interest 54,539.61
26,917,696.16
Credits:
Deposits -26,593,991.21
Releases -17,950.16
Refunds 115,335.02
Wirite-Offs «1,513.73
Misc Debits/Credits 31,261.73
Uncollected -450,837 .81
-26,917,696.16
Cotiection percentage for 2017 general taxes 98.33%

ou B 574 3

Teresa McDowell
Tax Collections Supervisor

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED BEFORE ME , this IOM day of August, 2018

-

My Commission Expires:




Charges:

Origitial Lewy
Discovery: Levy
Interest

Credits:
Deposits

Releases
Refunds

Misc Debits/Credits

Wrrite-offs
tncoliected

Settlement for Current Taxes for
Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018
{andfill User Fee LO1*17 and LD2*17

2,345817.20
0.00

16,805.23

2,362,822.43

2,453,610.02
-4,180.00
-2,581.81
2,5681.61
-31.27
-86,776.32

2,362,622.43




Charges:

Original Levy
Corporate Utility
Disicoveries
Intetest

Cradits:

Deposits

Relegses

Refunds

Debits! Credits/Write-Offs
Uncollected

Settlement for Current Taxes for
Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018
Highlands City Tax HO1*17

2,723,736.81
3,260.20
3,263.10
3,621.80

2,733,880.71

-2,719,394.01
-2,208.47
0.00

362028
-16,907.51

-2,733,880.71

e
]
o
i
i




Charges:

Original Levy
Corporate Utility
Interest

Credits:

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits/Credits/\Write-offs
Uncallected

Setflement for Current Taxes for
Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018
Franklin VFD F01*17

698,770.40
26,098.56
1,7356.06
726,604.02

746,741.42
-1,074.88
684.14
-19,746.66
726,604.02




Charges:

Qriginal Levy
Corporate Utility
Interest

Cradits:

Deposits
Releages/Refunds
Debits/CreditsMirite-offs
Uncoliected

Settlement for Current Taxes for
Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018
Clarks Chapel VFD F02*17

292,233.00
8,179.53

. 66599
301,078.52

-295,394.35
-86.12
333.66

-301,078.52




Charges:

Original Levy
Corporate Utility
Interest

Credits:

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits/Credits MWrite-offs
Uncollected

Settlement for Current Taxes for
Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018
Otto VED FO3*17

308,630.16
9,817.06
770.71
319,217.93

-311,931.21
24149

23.91
-7,069.14
-319,217 .93




Charges:

Original Levy
Corporate Utility
Interest

Credits:

Peposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits/Credits/Write-offs
Uncollected

Settlement for Current Taxes for
Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018
Cullasaja VFD F04*17

233,096.19
596317
525.04

- 239,584.40

-235,204.48
-143.45
186.97
-4,423.44
-239,584,40




Charges:

Original Levy
Corporate Levy
Interest

Credits:

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits/CreditsMrite-offs
Uncollected

Settlement for Current Taxes for
Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018
Weist Macon VFD BOS*17

282,214.92
'6,955.58
§35.52

289,706.02

-284,770.76
-207.33
495.75.
-5,223.69

~280,706.02




Charges:

Original Levy
Cotporate Utility
interest

Credits:

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits/Credits/\Writa-offs
Uncollected

Settlement for Current Taxes for
Fiscal Year 2017 < 2018
Scaly Min VFD FO8*17

114,833.53
1,053.96
295.34 -

117,182.83

-114,880.78
«11.47
15.26

-2,305.84

-117,182.83




Charges:

Original Levy
Corporate Utility
Interest

Credits:

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Dehits/Credils/Write-offs
Uncollected

Settlement for Current Taxes for
Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018
Burningtown/lotla VFD FO7*17

213,162.73
6.570.84
488.64

220,212.21

-214,174.70
6.61
21.13

-6,052.03

-220,212.21




Charges:

Original Levy
Corporate Utility
Interest

Credits:

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits/Cradits/\Write-offs
Uncollected

Sattiement_ for Current:Taxes for
Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018
Cowee VFD FO8*17

277,597.05
14,661.21
-844.20

" 291.304.06

-283,826.79
2.95
298.84
-7,671.16

-291,304.06




Charges:

Original Levy
Corporate Utility
Interest

Credits.

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits/Credits/\Write-offs
Uncollected:

Settlement for Current Taxes for
Fiscal Year 2017 -2018
Nantahala VFD FOg*7

203,792.29
14,037.17
614.85
218,444.31

:212,108.29
-251.77
387.54
647179
-218,444.31




Charges:

Original Levy
Corporate Utility
interest

Credits:

Deposits:
Releases/Refunds
Debits/Credits/Write-offs
Uncollected

Settlement for Current Taxes for
Fiscal Year2017 - 2018
Highlands VFD F10"17

366,580.53
1,619.20
1,104.39

369,304.12

~366,614.30
-175.43

542 .91
-3,057.30

-369,304.12




Settlement for Current Taxes for
Fiscal Year 2017 - 2018
Mountain Valley VFD F11*17

Charges:

- Qriginal Levy 125,212.74
Corporate Utility 4,238.52
Interest 214.66

129,665.92
Credits:
Deposits -127,360.94
Releases/Refunds 0.00
Debits/Credits/WVrite-affs 11.29
Uncoilected -2,316.27

-129,665.92




Charges:
Originaf Levy
Discovery Levy
Inferest

Credits:

Deposits
Releasas/Refunds

Bebits, Credits; Write-Off

Uncollected

Setilement for Delinquent Taxes
General County Taxes

1,269,750.07
495212
103,568.31

1,378,270.50

502,468 48
4,608.55
-48,059.39
-732,351,18

-1,378,270.50




Charges;

Criginal Levy
Discovery Levy
interest

Credits;

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits, Credits, Write-Off
Uncoliected

Settlement for Delinquent Taxes
Landfill User Fee

259,735.41
0.00

16,805.23

276,540.64

-90,173.92
-6,074.10
-21,564.21

-158,728.41

-276,540.64




Charges:

Original Levy
Interest

Credits:

eposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits, Credits, Write-Off
Uncoliected

Seﬁlément for Delinguent Taxes
Highlands Gity Taxes

29,509.57

1,653.87

31,083.24

-14,933.60
-237.24
~721.36

- -15,171.04

-31,063.24




Charges:

Original Levy
Discovery
Interest

Credits:

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits, Credits, Write-Off
Uncollected

Settlement for Delinquent Taxes
Franklin VFD

43,086.93
0.00
3,22131

46,308.24

-20,962.19
-230.31
-1,758.86

-23,356.88

-46,308.24




Charges:

Original Levy
Interest.

Credits:.

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits, Credits, Write-Off
tUncollected

Seftlement for Delinquent Taxes
Clarks Chapel VFD

14,274.25
936.62

15,210.87

-6,423.77
-0.88
-178.62
-8,698.60

-16,210.87




Charges:

Original Levy
Discavery
interest

Credits:

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Diehits, Gredits, Write-Off
Uncollected

Seftlement for Delinquent Taxes
Otte VFD

25,845.02
0.00
1,768.12

27,613.14

9,324.93
0.00
-1,195.76
-17,002.45

-27613.14




Chiarges:

Original Levy
Disgovery
Interest

Credits:

Deposits
Releages/Refunids
Debits, Credits, Write-Off
Uncollected

Settlement for Delinquent Taxes
Cullasaja Gorge VFD

13,697.66
348.42
1,5568.26

15,604.34

-8,227.55
-18.35
-549:46

-15,604.34




Charges:

Original Levy
Interest

Credits:

Deposits
Relgases/Reflinds
Debits, Credits, Write-Off
Uncollected

§

Settlernent for Delinquent Taxes
West Macon VED

18,773.12
1,170.23

16,043.35

-7,197.20

23.58

-448.32
927425

-16,943.35




Charges:

Qriginal Levy
Interest

Credits;

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits, Credits, Write-Off
Uncollected

Settiement for Delinquent Taxes
Scaly Mountain VFD:

2,797.84
349.85

3,147.69

«2,350.45
Q.00
-589.74
-737.50

-3,147.69




Charges:

Original Levy
Discovery
Interest

Credits:

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits, Credits, Write-Off
ineollected

Settlement for Delinquent Taxes

Burningtown VFD

11,944 28
0.00
1,608.22

13,452.50

-7,019.51
-4.50
-509.18
-5,919.31

-13,452.50




Charges:

Qrigifial Levy
Interest

Credits:

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits, Credits, Write-Off
Uncollected

Settlement for Delinquent Taxes
Cowee VFD

33,651.22
2,056.83

35,608.05

-11,026.33
-36.06
-1,247.71

2320795

-35,608.05




RET

Charges;

Original Levy
Discovery Levy
Interest

Credits:

Deposits
Releases/Refunds
Debits, Credits, Write-Off
Uncollected

Settiement for Delinquent Taxes
Nantahala VFD

18,398.92
475.94
1,874.67

20,649.53

-8,468.41
-48.28
-345.43
-11,687 .41

-20,549.63




Charges:

Original Levy
Discovery
interest

Credits:

Deposgits
Releases/Refunds
Debits, Credits, Write-Off
Uncollected

Settlement for Delinquent Taxes
Highlands VFD:

5,726.61
0.00
507.35

6,233.96

-3,140.08
-8.09
-94.90

-2,890.91

6,233,906




Charges:

Qriginal Levy
Discovery
Interest

Credits:

Deposits
Reéleases/Refunds
Pebits, Credits, Write-Off
Uncoliected

Seftlement for Delinguent Taxes
Mountain Valley VFD

12,740.98
0.00
554.64

13,295.62

-2,700.51
0.00
-414.27

-10,180.84

13,20562




MACON COUNTY MONTHLY
AD VALOREM TAX COLLECTIONS REPORT

k18

Beginning  Lewy:
Month to Date: Balance Added:

Less Less Equals Gross Lass
Reldases Write-Offs  Adjlewy Payments Refurdds  Mise DrfCr Net Payments

General Tax O 265519775 3 -1148.81 265508287 -275i010.88 340545 718.78  -2747786.65
Fire Districts X a -173.76 315619178 -290425:16 3] 34.78 -$90390.38
LandfilltUser Fee [+ 2530730 g <1.03 252072897  -22516315 [4] 95 -225068.1%
Totals O FEEI9GR il -13236 322277494 -3267499.19 3405.45 84856 -3263245.1%
Beginning  iewy Less Less Equals Gross Less.
Year o Date Balarnice Added Releases  Write«Offs  Adj Levy Payments Refursds Mise DefCr NetPayments
General Tax 0 265519715 q -1148.81 26550828.7 -2751910.88 340545 T18.78  -2747786.65
Fire Districts 0 315636554 ] -173.76° 315618178  -290425.16 1] 34.78 +290390.18
tandfill Usez Fee [ B0 o] -10%- 252072897 -225163.15 ¢} 5 ~325068.15
Totals Q32220073 0 -1323.6: 322277494 -3267499.15 340545 84856 -3263245.18

The Collection Rate is 1(.35%.collected on 2017 Generaf taxes, late listing.penalties, discoveries and deferred taxes as of 7/31/2018
&8 compared'to 8,78% on 2017 faxes as of 7/3:1/2017

Qutstanding
#alanca

23303042.02
2B65801:4
2295660.82
28964504.24

Cutstanding
Balance

23003042.02
28658014
2295660.82
28964504.24

Callestion
Percontige.




MACON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

AGENDA ITEM

MEETING DATE: August 14,2018
DEPARTMENT/AGENCY: Governing Board
SUBJECT MATTER: Appointments
COMMENTS/RECOMMENDATION:

A. Library Board — Karen Wallace has reported that Frank Oliver has
resigned from the Macon County Library Board of Trustees as he is now
serving as president of the Hudson Library Board of Trustees. Andrew
Chmar, also a member of the Hudson board, has expressed interest in
Mr. Oliver’s seat on the county board and his application is attached. If
selected, he would fill the remainder of Mr. Oliver’s unexpired term,
which ends March 14, 2020.

. Highlands Tourism Development Commission — Per Bob Kieltyka,
the selection of Tony Potts as chairman of the Highlands Tourism
Development Commission requires formal approval of the Macon
County Board of Commissioners.

Attachments 1 Yes

Agenda Item 13 (A and B)




- GenefalMarjagamem '
e Non—profit A;imfg;istration/(;ovemam :




